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Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Included in this Form 10-K are “forward-looking” statements, as well as historical information.  Although we believe
that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot assure you that the
expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements will prove to be correct.  Our actual results could differ
materially from those anticipated in forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors, including matters
described in the section titled “Risk Factors.”  Forward-looking statements include those that use forward-looking
terminology, such as the words “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “may,” “project,” “plan,” “will,” “shall,” “should,” and
similar expressions, including when used in the negative.  Although we believe that the expectations reflected in these
forward-looking statements are reasonable and achievable, these statements involve risks and uncertainties and we
cannot assure you that actual results will be consistent with these forward-looking statements.  Important factors that
could cause our actual results, performance or achievements to differ from these forward-looking statements include
the following:

●The availability of additional funds to successfully pursue our business plan;
●The cooperation of our lenders;
●The cooperation of industry service partners that have signed agreements with us;

●Our ability to market our services to current and new customers and generate customer demand for our products and
services in the geographical areas in which we operate;

●The impact of changes in federal and state laws impacting the industries in which we operate;
●Our ability to comply with provisions of our financing agreements;
●The highly competitive nature of cloud-based products;
●The acceptance of cloud-based technologies by mainstream consumers;
●Our ability to retain key personnel;
●Our ability to maintain adequate customer care and manage our churn rate;

●The impact of adverse tax or regulatory rulings or actions affecting our operations, including the imposition of taxes,
fees and penalties;

●Our ability to maintain, attract and integrate internal management, technical information and management
information systems;

●Our ability to manage rapid growth while maintaining adequate controls and procedures;
●The availability and maintenance of suitable vendor relationships, in a timely manner, at reasonable cost;
●The decrease in prices to consumers brought about by intense competition in cloud-based products; and
●General economic conditions.

These forward-looking statements are subject to numerous assumptions, risks and uncertainties that may cause our
actual results to be materially different from any future results expressed or implied by us in those statements.

These risk factors should be considered in connection with any subsequent written or oral forward-looking statements
that we or persons acting on our behalf may issue.  All written and oral forward-looking statements made in
connection with this Report that are attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their

Edgar Filing: PERVASIP CORP - Form 10-K

6



entirety by these cautionary statements.  Given these uncertainties, we caution investors not to unduly rely on our
forward-looking statements.  We do not undertake any obligation to review or confirm analysts’ expectations or
estimates or to release publicly any revisions to any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances
after the date of this document or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.  Further, the statements about our
intentions contained in this document are statements of our intentions as of the date of this document and are based
upon, among other things, the existing regulatory environment, industry conditions, market conditions and prices, the
economy in general and our assumptions as of such date.  We may change our intentions, at any time and without
notice, based upon any changes in such factors, in our assumptions or otherwise.

1

Edgar Filing: PERVASIP CORP - Form 10-K

7



PART I

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we will refer to Pervasip Corp., a New York corporation, as “our company,” “we,”
“us” and “our.”

Item 1.  Business.

Overview

Our company was incorporated in the State of New York in 1964.  From 1999 to 2015 we were involved exclusively
in the telecommunications business, both as a reseller of telephone services and, after 2004, through our own IP
telephone network. In December 2007, we changed our name to Pervasip Corp. The word Pervasip is a contraction of
the phrase “Pervasive IP” to signify a pervasive Internet Protocol (“IP”) company with cloud-based technology that
possessed a ubiquitous global presence.

During fiscal 2015 we transitioned from our cloud-based telecommunications business to pursue a cloud-based
business focused on the emerging cannabis industry. We purchased Canalytix LLC, which is developing a
cloud-based application to monitor and control greenhouse facilities, providing real-time data on energy usage, HVAC
systems, lighting and costs. On July 1, 2015, we purchased Plaid Canary Corporation (“PCC”), a special purpose
consolidation company organized to acquire companies and technologies in emerging agricultural markets. On July 6,
2015, PCC acquired 60% of the membership units of Grow Big Supply LLC (“Grow Big”), which operated a retail
supply store in Denver, Colorado targeted at those involved in growing cannabis.

We planned to use part of the Grow Big facility to provide laboratory testing and oil extraction services. The facility,
however, was in a warehouse district and it was too difficult to maintain the cleanliness required for laboratory work.
In February 2016, we were provided significant financial incentives from Grow Big’s landlord to close our Grow Big
store and move it to another location. We laid off our staff at the store, except for our Chief Science Officer and Chief
Operating Officer, and we moved our inventory to temporary storage while we searched for a location that would
allow us to perform scientific work and sell off our remaining inventory. In November 2016, we secured a verbal
agreement with a licensed grower and dispensary and we moved inventory from storage into its warehouse. When our
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existing inventory is sold, we do not plan to continue the sale of gardening products. We believe there is more value in
providing scientific analysis and extraction services to entities that are operating under a cannabis license.

We have developed scientific methods for the analysis of cannabinoids in flowers, concentrates, and edibles through
the use of available instruments. As our operations expand, we plan to assist medical marijuana specialty production
facilities in order to better regulate, calculate proper dosage, and improve consistency in the product.

Available Information

We maintain a corporate website with the address www.canalytix.com.  We have not incorporated by reference into
this Report on Form 10-K the information on any of our websites and you should not consider any of such information
to be a part of this document. Our website addresses are included in this document for reference only.

We make available free of charge through our corporate website our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports
on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to these reports through a link to the EDGAR
database as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish such material to,
the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”).  You can also read and copy any materials we file with the
SEC at the SEC's Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. You can obtain additional
information about the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1.800.SEC.0330. In addition, the
SEC maintains a website (www.sec.gov) that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other
information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC, including all of our filings.

2
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The Industry

Marijuana, a derivative of the cannabis plant,is classified as a Schedule I controlled substance under the U.S.
Controlled Substances Act. A Schedule I controlled substance is defined as a substance that has no currently accepted
medical use in the United States, a lack of safety for use under medical supervision, and a high potential for
abuse.  The Department of Justice defines Schedule 1 controlled substances as “the most dangerous drugs of all the
drug schedules with potentially severe psychological or physical dependence.”  Possession of marijuana is illegal under
federal law. Possession with an intent to distribute marijuana is a felony under federal law, potentially punishable by
fines up to $50 million and terms of imprisonment up to life.

Nevertheless, commencing with California in 1996, a succession of states have decriminalized the use of marijuana
for medical purposes. Although the medical uses of marijuana deemed acceptable vary from state to state,
decriminalization of use for relief of nausea during chemotherapy, to induce appetite among cancer and AIDs patients,
and to relieve chronic pain and muscle spasms is common. At present, 27 states and the District of Columbia had
decriminalized some or all medical uses of marijuana. In December 2015 Congress directed the U.S. Justice
Department that it may not interfere with the medical use of marijuana in states where such use is authorized. The
number of Americans living in states in which recreational marijuana is legal more than tripled as a result of the
November 2016 elections. Seven states have legalized recreational marijuana, and a recent Gallup poll suggests that
almost 60% of Americans support the idea.

Our Business Plan

Our business plan is to expand our product and service offerings to meet the full panoply of requirements for
marijuana production, and expand our geographic scope as the criminal proscription of commercial marijuana recedes.
Our Chief Science Officer, Dr. Kenneth Hughes, is leading our research and development activities directed towards
development of technologies that will yield products and services useful to the cannabis industry. Dr. Hughes is a
specialist in the realization of products for agricultural and cleantech applications based on complex technology. Dr.
Hughes is exploring technologies currently used by our affiliates for extraction of corn oil during the production of
ethanol, and is adapting that know-how to enable the cost-effective extraction of oil from the cannabis plant. Success
in that endeavor would provide us a leading-edge position in the expanding marijuana production industry, as the
extraction technology could be marketed to the larger scale producers that are likely to emerge as the industry expands
and matures.

Once we have established our position as a known source for leading edge technologies in the cannabis industry, we
intend to build on that position by accumulating a portfolio of technologies and services that will enable us to offer
clients a resolution for any technical issue in growing cannabis they may encounter.
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Software and Analytics

Early in 2015 we acquired 90% of Canalytix LLC. Canalytix was organized to market a software solution for the
cannabis growing industry - specifically a cloud-based method of offsite monitoring of an indoor growing facility. Our
plan is to use that platform as our entry into a position as a known "think-tank" for the cannabis growing industry,
offering a full complement of technologies and services that will enhance the profitabilty of our client growers.

The core Canalytix software enables growers, both commercial or hobbyist, to monitor and control greenhouse
facilities through a system of sensors that transfer to the cloud real-time data regarding energy usage, efficiency of
HVAC systems, lighting and related expense items. The systems also permit the grouwers to measure, test and
properly extract and rate their product to allow users to know the potency of the product they consume. We can also
assist medical marijuana specialty production facilities in order to better regulate, calculate proper dosage, and
maintain consistency in their product.

Our staff is currently working on developing laboratory bench top equipment for the analysis of compounds that are
important to the cannabis industry, including cannabinoids and terpenes. We are also engaged in developing field
portable equipment to allow on-site analytics.  

3
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Going forward, we plan to offer consumers the data/analytics from laboratory testing services to assist consumers in
finding the cannabis product that meets their needs.  We also plan to us the data/analytics to assist with formulation
projects for our customers or other companies requiring that capability.

Implementation of advanced instrumentation is a major key to efficient operations where plant yields are maximized,
costs are reduced, and impacts on the environment are minimized.  We have identified several areas where
tremendous opportunity exists for portable chemical sensing instrumentation.

·

Plant chemical signals (released to the atmosphere) are important in understanding plant stage of lifecycle,
production of valuable plant components including cannabinoids, and terpenes, and indicating when pests are
present.  We believe we can both “tune” and organize a chemical sensing system to detect and monitor these chemicals
to provide guidance on when to harvest plants, and when to provide nutrient and pesticide treatment.  Currently, plant
harvesting is determined by visual information and destructive analysis. The use of non-destructive high sensitivity
instrumentation could yield hundreds of thousands of dollars to the bottom-line of large growing operations. 

·

Greenhouse and warehouse optimization reduces costs and increases product yields.  Precise and accurate control of
environmental conditions allows for greater optimization.  We have the ability to perform advanced environmental
monitoring through a range of third-party licensed advanced technology sensing instrumentation and software
monitoring tools.  The combination of this technology and in-house technical expertise will allow grow facility
managers as well as Canalytix personnel to monitor growing operations remotely, identify problems immediately,
minimize energy use, and reduce environmental impacts. 

Marketing

Our marketing approach is focused on working with industry participants to create awareness of the services and
products we provide. Word-of-mouth has proven to be our most valuable form of marketing. We also post information
on websites to attract potential customers within the geographical area that we serve.

Our target market segments include Home Growers of organic vegetable and fruit Growers (small farms, home garden
growers, restaurants growers, farmer markets), the Do-it Yourselfers (home flower and plant growers/ mass market
and growers in the cannabis related market (Dispensaries, Cultivators, Caregivers).

Indoor growing techniques have primarily been used to cultivate plant-based medicines. Plant-based medicines often
require high-degree of regulation and controls including government compliance, security, and crop consistency,
making indoor growing techniques a preferred method. Cultivators of plant-based medicines often make a significant
investment to design and build-out their facilities. They look to work with companies such as ours that understand
their specific needs and can help mitigate risks that could jeopardize their crops. Plant-based medicines are believed to
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be among the fastest-growing market in the U.S. and several industry pundits believe that plant-based medicines may
even displace prescription pain medication by providing patients with a safer, more affordable alternative.

Competition

All of the Company’s planned distribution channels will compete for customers and sales with many different
companies and products that are competitive today and likely to be even more competitive in the future. Accordingly,
we believe it is essential that the Company continues to develop, improve, and refine the value propositions that are
offered to its customers.

Competition in the legal cannabis industry is significant, as competing companies continually open, and medical
dispensaries search for a consistent source for oil products. With regard to competition in the California, Colorado,
Oregon and Washington markets, there are numerous extraction facilities that we believe will compete with us for
business.

The Company’s size relative to its competition is difficult to gauge as most of our competition is privately held and
does not publicly report their earnings. We do know of several competitors who have been in operations longer than
us, but they are privately held and, therefore, we are unable to determine their size in terms of annual revenue.

4
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We also face competition from other public companies that offer equipment and expendables. Moreover, as the
negative stigma associated with some types of urban gardening such as legal cannabis plants diminishes, it is very
possible that other better capitalized public and private companies may enter the market and may effectively challenge
the value proposition offered by the Pervasip subsidiaries. These competitors may be able to attract customers more
easily because of their financial resources. Our larger competitors can also devote substantially more resources to
business development and may adopt more aggressive pricing policies. We plan to compete on the strength of
multiple product offerings, controlled production and scientific analysis to ensure high-quality and consistency in the
products that we plan to offer.

Government Regulation

Twenty-seven states and the District of Columbia currently have laws legalizing marijuana in some form. Seven states
and the District of Columbia have adopted more expansive laws legalizing marijuana for recreational use. Most
recently, California, Massachusetts and Nevada all passed measures in November 2016 legalizing recreational
marijuana. California’s Prop. 64 measure allows adults 21 and older to now possess up to one ounce of marijuana and
grow up to six plants in their homes. Other tax and licensing provisions of the law will not take effect until January
2018. In Nevada, adults will be able to legally possess up to one ounce of marijuana beginning January 1, 2017. A
similar ballot measure in Massachusetts allows for possession of marijuana starting on December 15, 2016.

A number of states have also decriminalized the possession of small amounts of marijuana. Other states have passed
medical marijuana laws allowing for limited use of cannabis. Some medical marijuana laws are broader than others,
with types of medical conditions that allow for treatment varying from state to state. Others states have passed laws
allowing residents to possess cannabis oil if they suffer from certain medical illnesses.

The state laws are in conflict with the federal Controlled Substances Act, which makes marijuana use and possession
illegal on a national level. The Obama administration stated that it is not an efficient use of resources to direct federal
law enforcement agencies to prosecute those lawfully abiding by state-designated laws allowing the use and
distribution of medical marijuana, and the U.S. Congress concurred. However, there is no guarantee that the Trump
administration which comes to office in 2017 will not change federal policy regarding the enforcement of the
Controlled Substances Act. Any change to more strict enforcement of current federal laws could cause significant
financial damage to Pervasip and its shareholders. While Pervasip and its subsidiaries do not intend to harvest,
distribute or sell cannabis, more strict enforcement of federal law would be likely to reduce the demand for our
products and services.

Employees
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As of November 30, 2016 we have 3 full-time employees.  We are not subject to any collective bargaining agreement
and we believe our relationship with our employees is good.  We plan to operate with a small number of employees
until our revenues increase further or until we are able to attract additional financing that has money earmarked for
sales and marketing expense.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the risks below, as well as all of the other information contained in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K and our financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form
10-K, in evaluating our company and our business. Any of these risks could materially adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations and the trading price of our common stock.

I. Risks Related To Our Financial Condition

Our business will not be viable unless we obtain significant amounts of additional capital.

At November 30, 2015 we had $8,978 in cash and $7,183 in accounts receivable, balanced against $1,622,649 in
accounts payable and many millions in debt. It is unlikely that we can sustain current operations, and it is impossible
that we can expand current operation, unless we obtain additional capital. Because of our poor financial condition, it
will be very difficult to obtain additional capital. If we fail to do so, it is likely that our business will fail and our
shareholders will lose most or all of their investment in our company.

5
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Our negative net worth will make it unlikely that we can obtain conventional financing for our business during
the forseeable future.

Conventional financing generally consists of debt secured by assets or of equity financing. At the present time, we
have secured debt outstanding in amounts that far exceed the book value of our assets. We also have a shareholders’
deficit that is approximately 19 times the book value of our assets - which means that our company has no equity. For
those reasons, we will not be able to obtain conventional financing unless and until these conditions are substantially
alleviated, which is unlikely to happen in the near future. Until then, the only financing that will be available to us will
involve the sale of securities convertible into common stock at floating rates, so that our investors can liquidate their
investment by selling into the market for our common stock. Our ability to obtain such financing will depend on the
continued liquidity of the market for our common stock. If the trading volume in the market for our common stock
diminishes, we may be unable to attract investors of any kind, in which case our business would be likely to fail for
want of capital resources.

The $3,832,659 in debt that we owe to our lenders will add high interest expenses to our statement of
operations, which will make it difficult for us to report profits.

During the year ended November 30, 2015 we recorded $1,414,029 in interest expense, or 234% of our revenues in
that period. During the year ended November 30, 2014, we recorded $1,838,375 in interest expense, or 374% of our
revenues for the year. At November 30, 2015 we had $3,832,659 in debt on our balance sheet, before taking into
consideration any debt discounts. That debt, until it is satisfied, will result in interest expense in amounts that far
exceed our current revenue level. This situation will make it difficult for us to realize net income in the coming
periods (except for net income that may occasionally result from changes in the value of our outstanding derivative
liabilities). And, in turn, our inability to report net income will make it difficult for us to obtain capital financing that
might replace the high interest debt on our balance sheet. 

The debt agreements governing our financing contain restrictions that may limit our flexibility in operating our
business

In October 2015 we entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with TCA Global Credit Master Fund, LP, which is
the Selling Security Holder in this offering. Under the terms of the Securities Purchase Agreement, we sold to TCA a
secured convertible debenture in the principal amount of $500,000. The Securities Purchase Agreement contains
covenants that limit our ability to enter into specified types of transactions. These covenants will prevent us from
undertaking, without the consent of TCA, transactions of the following nature:

· merger or consolidation;
· grant of liens on our assets;

· sale or disposal of assets outside the ordinary course of business;
· consummation of acquisitions;
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· investments; or
· payment of dividends or other distributions.

These covenants may prevent us from taking actions that we consider to be in the Company's best interests and in the
interest of its shareholders, but that TCA does not perceive to be in its own interest. In addition, we are in default of
our lending agreement with TCA.

We do not expect to pay dividends and investors should not buy our common stock expecting to receive
dividends.

We have not paid any dividends on our common stock in the past, and do not anticipate that we will declare or pay
any dividends in the foreseeable future. Consequently, investors will only realize an economic gain on their
investment in our common stock if the price appreciates. Investors should not purchase our common stock expecting
to receive cash dividends. Because we do not pay dividends, and there may be limited trading, investors may not have
any manner to liquidate or receive any payment on their investment. Therefore, our failure to pay dividends may cause
investors to not see any return on investment even if we are successful in our business operations. In addition, because
we do not pay dividends we may have trouble raising additional funds, which could affect our ability to expand our
business operations.

6
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II. Risks Related To Our Business Operations

We have a limited operating history and operate in a new industry, and we may not succeed.

We have a limited operating history in our current line of business.  We are subject to all risks inherent in a
developing business enterprise.  Our likelihood of success must be considered in light of the problems, expenses,
difficulties, complications, and delays frequently encountered in the competitive and regulatory environment in which
we operate. For example, the recreational and medical marijuana industry is a new industry that as a whole may not
succeed, particularly should the Federal government change course and decide to prosecute those dealing in medical
and recreational marijuana in violation of Federal law.  If that happens, the market for our products and services
would be likely to disappear.  

Since we participate in a new industry, there are no established entities whose business model we can follow or build
on the success of.  Similarly, there is limited information about comparable companies available for potential
investors to review in making a decision about whether to invest in Pervasip. Further, as the medical and recreational
marijuana industry is a new market, it is ripe for technological advancements that could limit or eliminate the need for
our services and products.

You should consider, among other factors, the risks and uncertainties encountered by companies that, like Pervasip,
are in their early stages.  For example, unanticipated expenses, problems, and technical difficulties may occur and they
may result in material delays in the operation of our business, in particular with respect to our services and
products.  We may not successfully address these risks and uncertainties or successfully implement our operating
strategies.  If we fail to do so, it could materially harm our business to the point of having to cease operations and
could impair the value of our capital stock to the point investors may lose their entire investment. 

The long term success of our business will depend on our ability to develop new technologies for the cannabis
industry.

Pervasip will only be successful as a vehicle for public investment if we are able to achieve a market position that
generates substantial profits. Our plan to achieve that market position is based on our ambition to develop
technologies that will enhance the profitablity of our clients in the cannabis industry. We are active in developing
those technologies; but the success of our development efforts is by no means assured. Moreover, any new products or
services that we develop and offer to the industry may be subject to significant competition from offerings by new and
existing competitors in the legal cannabis industry. In addition, new products, services and enhancements may pose a
variety of technical challenges and require us to attract additional qualified employees. The failure to successfully
develop and market these new products, services or enhancements could prevent Pervasip from becoming profitable.  
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Our computer systems and operations may be vulnerable to security breaches.

We expect that the cloud-based monitoring systems offered by our subsidiary, Canalytix, to the cannabis industry will
be an important foundation for establishing our company as a leading source of technology for that industry. For that
reason, among others, the safety of our network and our secure transmission of confidential information over the
Internet will be essential to our operations and our services. Although we have developed systems and processes that
are designed to protect our network and the consumer information stored on our network, our network and our
computer infrastructure are potentially vulnerable to physical breaches or to the introduction of computer viruses,
abuse of use and similar disruptive problems and security breaches that could cause loss (both economic and
otherwise), interruptions, delays or loss of services to our users. We rely on licensed encryption and authentication
technology to effect secure transmission of confidential information, including credit card numbers. It is possible,
however, that advances in computer capabilities or new technologies could result in a compromise or breach of the
technology we use to protect user transaction data. A party that is able to circumvent our security systems could
misappropriate proprietary information, cause interruptions in our operations or utilize our network without
authorization. Security breaches also could damage our reputation and expose us to a risk of loss, litigation and
possible liability. While we have experienced isolated instances of unauthorized use of our network, and have
responded to such events by taking steps to increase our network security, we cannot guarantee you that our security
measures will prevent future security breaches.

7
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Third parties might infringe upon our technology.

We cannot assure you that the steps we have taken to protect our property rights will prevent misappropriation of our
technology. To protect our rights to our intellectual property, we rely on a combination of trade secrets, confidentiality
agreements and other contractual arrangements with our employees, affiliates, strategic partners and others. However,
we may be unable to detect inappropriate use of our technology. Moreover, in the event of misappropriation, we may
lack the financial resources necessary to successfully prosecute an enforcement action. Failure to adequately protect
our intellectual property could materially harm our brand, devalue our proprietary content and adversely affect our
ability to compete effectively. Further, defending our technology rights could result in significant financial expenses
and managerial resources.

Third parties may claim that our services infringe upon their intellectual property rights.

Third parties may assert claims that we have violated a patent or infringed a copyright, trademark or other proprietary
right belonging to them and subject us to expensive and disruptive litigation. We incorporate licensed technology in
some of our products and services. In these license agreements, the licensors have agreed to indemnify us with respect
to any claim by a third party that the licensed software infringes any patent or other proprietary right so long as we
have not made changes to the licensed software. We cannot assure you that these provisions will be adequate to
protect us from infringement claims. Any infringement claims and lawsuits, even if not meritorious, could be
expensive and time consuming to defend; divert management’s attention and resources; require us to redesign our
products and services, if feasible; require us to pay royalties or enter into licensing agreements in order to obtain the
right to use necessary technologies; and/or may materially disrupt the conduct of our business.

We may face difficulties related to entry into joint ventures or the future acquisition or integration of
additional businesses, which could harm our growth or operating results

Because we have entered into an industry that is rapidly developing, it is crucual to our future success that we keep
pace with the growth. Toward that end, we will be aggressively pursuing opportunities to enter into joint venture
arrangements with other industry participants or to acquire additional businesses or assets. Any such events will
require substantial management time and resources, which may distract from our core operations to their detriment. In
addition, acquisitions of existing businesses involve substantial risks, including the risk that we may not be able to
integrate the operations, personnel, services, or technologies, the potential disruption of our ongoing businesses, the
diversion of management attention, the maximization of financial and strategic opportunities, the difficulty in
developing or maintaining controls and procedures, and the dilution to our existing stockholders from the issuance of
additional shares of common stock. As a result of these and other risks, we may not produce anticipated revenue,
profitability, or synergies.
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Because of our limited financial resources, acquisitions will likely require us to issue equity securities. Such
transactions often result in significant expenses, such as the amortization of intangibles, write-down of goodwill, and
write-off of acquisition-related expenses. If we are unable to successfully integrate any acquired businesses or assets
we may not receive the intended benefits of such acquisition. In addition, we cannot predict market reactions to any
acquisitions we may make.

While we conduct due diligence in connection with acquisition and joint venture opportunities, there will be a risk that
such due diligence efforts fail to discover undisclosed liabilities or that we inadequately assess known liabilities. The
discovery of material liabilities associated with acquisitions or joint venture opportunities, economic risks faced by
joint venture partners, or any failure of joint venture partners to perform their obligations could adversely affect our
business, results of operations, and financial condition.

If we are able to expand our operations, we may be unable to successfully manage our future growth.

Even if we are successful in expanding our operations in the United States, as planned, we may experience periods of
rapid growth, which will require additional resources.  Any such growth could place increased strain on our
management, operational, financial and other resources, and we will need to train, motivate, and manage employees,
as well as attract management, sales, finance and accounting, international, technical, and other professionals.  In
addition, we will need to expand the scope of our infrastructure and our physical resources. Any failure to expand
these areas and implement appropriate procedures and controls in an efficient manner and at a pace consistent with our
business objectives could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.
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III. Risks Relating To Our Industry

Our success will be dependent on additional states legalizing medical and recreational marijuana.

Continued development of the medical and recreational marijuana market is dependent upon continued legislative
authorization of marijuana at the state level. Any number of factors could slow or halt the progress. Further, progress
is not assured and the process can be expected to encounter set-backs. Even in states where there is public support for
a legislative proposal, key support must be created in the relevant legislative committee or a bill may never advance to
a vote.  Numerous factors can interfere with success in the legislative process. Any one of these factors could slow or
halt the progress and adoption of marijuana for recreational and medical purposes, which would limit the market for
our products and negatively impact our business and revenues.

Marijuana remains illegal under federal law. Even in those jurisdictions in which the use of medical marijuana
has been legalized at the state level, its use and prescription are violations of federal law, which may disrupt the
on going business of Pervasip.

Possession and distribution of marijuana remain illegal under federal law.  Marijuana is a schedule-I controlled
substance.  Even in those jurisdictions in which the use of medical and recreational marijuana have been legalized at
the state level, its possession, prescription or distributions remains a violation of federal law.  The United States
Supreme Court has ruled in United States v. Oakland Cannabis Buyers’ Coop. and Gonzales v. Raich that the federal
government has the right to regulate and criminalize cannabis, even for medical and recreational purposes,
notwithstanding state or local de-regulation.  Therefore, federal law criminalizing the use of marijuana trumps state
laws that legalize its use for medicinal purposes.  At present, certain states are decriminalizing possession of
marijuana, either for medical use or in general. This may be because the Obama administration made a policy decision
to allow states to implement these laws and not prosecute anyone operating in accordance with applicable state
law.  However, we faced another presidential election cycle in 2016, and a new administration could introduce a less
favorable policy.  A change in the federal attitude towards enforcement could cripple the industry. The legal cannabis
industry is our target market, and if this industry is unable to operate, we would lose the majority of our potential
clients, which would have a negative impact on our business, operations and financial condition.

Our subsidiaries may have difficulty accessing the service of banks, which may make it difficult to conduct our
business operations.

As discussed above, the distribution of marijuana is illegal under federal law.  Therefore, there is a compelling
argument that banks cannot accept for deposit funds from the legal cannabis industry, and therefore cannot do
business with the Company.  While efforts are underway in the U.S. Congress to amend banking regulations and laws
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in order to allow banks to transact business with state-authorized medical and recreational marijuana businesses, there
can be no assurance these legislative efforts will be successful, that banks will agree to do business with medical
marijuana and recreational marijuana industry participants, or that in the absence of legislation state and federal
banking regulators will not strictly enforce current prohibitions on banks handling funds generated from an activity
that is illegal under federal law.  If we are unable to open accounts and otherwise use the service of banks, the result
could be a material adverse effect on our business operations.

Pervasip may be unable to respond to the rapid technological change in its industry, and such change may
increase costs and competition that may adversely affect our business.

Rapidly changing technologies, frequent new product and service introductions and evolving industry standards
characterize the Company’s market. The continued growth of the Internet and intense competition in the Company’s
industry exacerbate these market characteristics. The Company’s future success will depend on its ability to adapt to
rapidly changing technologies by continually improving the performance features and reliability of its products and
services. The Company may experience difficulties that could delay or prevent the successful development,
introduction or marketing of its products and services. In addition, any new enhancements must meet the requirements
of its current and prospective users and must achieve significant market acceptance. The Company could also incur
substantial costs if it needs to modify its products and services or infrastructures to adapt to these changes.

9
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The Company also expects that new competitors may introduce products, systems or services that are directly or
indirectly competitive with the Company. These competitors may succeed in developing, products, systems and
services that have greater functionality or are less costly than the Company’s products, systems and services, and may
be more successful in marketing such products, systems and services. Technological changes have lowered the cost of
operating communications and computer systems and purchasing software. These changes reduce the Company’s cost
of providing services but also facilitate increased competition by reducing competitors’ costs in providing similar
services. This competition could increase price competition and reduce anticipated profit margins.

The cannabis industry is highly competitive and we have less capital and resources than many of our
competitors, which may give them an advantage in developing and marketing products similar to ours or make
our products obsolete.

We are involved in a highly competitive industry where we will compete with numerous other companies that offer
alternative methods or approaches, that may have far greater resources, more experience, and personnel perhaps more
qualified than we do. Such resources may give our competitors an advantage in developing and marketing products
similar to ours or products that make our products obsolete. There can be no assurance that we will be able to
successfully compete against these other entities.

IV. Risks Related To Our Management

Our Series E preferred shareholder has voting control of our company and has the ability to exercise control
over all matters submitted to a stockholder vote.

Our Chief Executive Officer, Paul Riss, currently owns 10 shares of our Series E Preferred Stock, which gives him
51% of the voting power at any meeting of our shareholders or if shareholder consents are collected. He is therefore
able to control the outcome of any matter submitted to the shareholders for approval, which would include the election
of directors, recapitalizations, mergers or other significant corporate transactions.

TCA may obtain voting control of the Company and exercise it for its own purposes.

In October 2015 the Company sold a $500,000 promissory note to TCA Global Credit Master Fund, LP. The Note
matures in April 2017 and bears interest at 18% per annum. In connection with the sale of the Note, the Company
issued to TCA Series J Preferred Stock. The certificate that created the Series J Preferred Stock provides that, if the
Company incurs a default under the terms of the Note, TCA may declare its rights as a holder of Series J Preferred
Stock effective. Those rights include the right to exercise voting control of the Company. The Company has defaulted
under the Note, and accordingly, TCA could take control of the Company. It is possible that TCA would use that
control to protect its investment in the Company in ways that may not be in the best interests of the other shareholders
of the Company.
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Because we are not subject to compliance with rules requiring the adoption of certain corporate governance
measures, our shareholders have limited protections against interested director transactions, conflicts of
interest and similar matters.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as well as rule changes proposed and enacted by the SEC, the New York Stock
Exchange and the Nasdaq Stock Market as a result of Sarbanes-Oxley, require the implementation of various
measures relating to corporate governance. These measures are designed to enhance the integrity of corporate
management and the securities markets and apply to securities which are listed on the New York Stock Exchanges or
the Nasdaq Stock Market. Because we are not presently required to comply with many of the corporate governance
provisions and because we chose to avoid incurring the substantial additional costs associated with such compliance
any sooner than necessary, we have not yet adopted these measures.

Because none of our directors is independent, we do not currently have independent audit or compensation
committees. This situation means that the Board will determine the direction of our company with only limited
contribution of insights from outside observers with an objective perspective. This may limit the quality of the
decisions that are made. In addition, the members of our board who are also officers have the ability, among other
things, to determine their own levels of compensation. Until we comply with such corporate governance measures,
regardless of whether such compliance is required, the absence of such standards of corporate governance may leave
our shareholders without protections against interested director transactions, conflicts of interest and similar matters
and investors may be reluctant to provide us with funds necessary to expand our operations.
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We depend upon key personnel, the loss of which could seriously harm our business.

Our operating performance is substantially dependent on the continued services of our executive officers and key
employees. In particular, Dr. Kenneth Hughes, our Chief Science Officer, possesses valuable knowledge about and
experience in extraction technologies and patent applications. We have not entered into an employment agreement
with Dr. Hughes and, although we are considering doing so, have not acquired key-person life insurance on him or
any of our executive officers.  The unexpected loss of the services of Dr.Hughes could have a material adverse effect
on our business, operations, financial condition and operating results, as well as the value of our common stock.

The Company’s failure to attract, train, or retain highly qualified personnel could harm the Company’s
business.

The Company’s success also depends on the Company’s ability to attract, train, and retain qualified personnel,
specifically those with management and product development skills. In particular, the Company must hire additional
skilled personnel to further the Company’s research and development efforts. Competition for such personnel is
intense. If the Company does not succeed in attracting new personnel or retaining and motivating the Company’s
current personnel, the Company’s business could be harmed.

If we fail to establish and maintain an effective system of internal controls, we may not be able to report our
financial results accurately or to prevent fraud. Any inability to report and file our financial results accurately
and timely could harm our reputation and adversely impact the trading price of our common stock.

Effective internal controls are necessary for us to provide reliable financial reports and prevent fraud. If we cannot
provide reliable financial reports or prevent fraud, we will not be able to manage our business as effectively as we
would if an effective control environment existed, and our business and reputation with investors may be harmed. As
a result, our small size and any current internal control deficiencies may adversely affect our financial condition,
results of operation and access to capital.

We currently have insufficient written policies and procedures for accounting and financial reporting with respect to
the requirements and application of US GAAP and SEC disclosure requirements. Additionally, there is a lack of
formal process and timeline for closing the books and records at the end of each reporting period. Such weaknesses
restrict the Company’s ability to timely gather, analyze and report information relative to the financial statements.
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Because of the Company’s limited resources, there are limited controls over information processing. There is
inadequate segregation of duties consistent with control objectives. Our Company’s management is composed of a
small number of individuals resulting in a situation where limitations on segregation of duties exist. In order to
remedy this situation we would need to hire additional staff. Currently, the Company is unable to hire additional staff
to facilitate greater segregation of duties but will continue to reassess its capabilities as it gains access to additional
capital.

V. Risks Related To Ownership Of Our Common Stock

The market price of our common stock has been and will continue to be adversely affected by our outstanding
convertible debentures.

Several third-party investors currently hold convertible debentures issued by the Company that allow them to convert
principal and interest into shares of our common stock at conversion prices that approximate a 30% to 60% discount
to the trading price of our common stock. At November 30, 2015, the balance of the convertible debentures
outstanding payable to such convertible debenture holders amounted to $3,470,211. If those debentures were
converted in full, the shares that would be issued would far exceed the number of shares of our common stock
currently outstanding. When those debentures are converted, the shares that are issued are usually immediately sold by
the debenture holders into the public market. These sales, and the anticipation of such sales in the future, exerts a
downward pressure on our stock price. When a lender converts the debt into shares of our common stock and resells
those shares into the market, the result is often a reduction in the market price of our common stock. Until we are able
to replace the convertible debentures with debt or equity financing that does not exert a continuing pressure on the
market price of our common stock, the market price will continue to be volatile, and investors in our stock will bear a
significant risk of reductions in the market value of our common stock.
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Our common stock is quoted on the OTC Pink Market, which may increase the volatility of our stock and
make it harder to sell shares of our stock.

Our common stock is quoted on the OTC Pink Market, which is the lower tier of the markets maintained by OTC
Markets.   There is a greater chance of market volatility for securities that trade on the OTC Pink (as opposed to a
national exchange or quotation system), as a result of which stockholders may experience wide fluctuations and a
depressed price in the market price of our securities. Thus, stockholders may be required to either sell our securities at
a market price which is lower than their purchase price or to hold our securities for a longer period of time than they
planned.  Because our common stock falls under the definition of “penny stock,” trading in our common stock may be
limited because broker-dealers are required to provide their customers with disclosure documents prior to allowing
them to participate in transactions involving our common stock. These rules impose additional sales practice
requirements on broker-dealers that sell low-priced securities to persons other than established customers and
institutional accredited investors; and require the delivery of a disclosure schedule explaining the nature and risks of
the penny stock market. As a result, the ability or willingness of broker-dealers to sell or make a market in our
common stock may be limited, and stockholders could find it more difficult to sell their stock.

There is limited trading of our common stock, and there can be no assurance that there will be an active
market for our shares of common stock either now or in the future.

Our shares of common stock have limited trading, and the price if traded may not reflect the value of our Company.
There can be no assurance that there will be an active market for shares of our common stock either now or in the
future. The market liquidity will be dependent on the perception of our operating business and any steps that our
management might take to bring us to the awareness of investors. There can be no assurance given that there will be
any awareness generated. Consequently, investors may not be able to liquidate their investment or liquidate it at a
price that reflects the value of the business. If a more active market should develop, the price may be highly volatile.
Because there may be a low price for our shares of common stock or because we are involved in the legal cannabis
industry, many brokerage firms may not be willing to effect transactions in the securities. Even if an investor finds a
broker willing to effect a transaction in the shares of our common stock, the combination of brokerage commissions,
transfer fees, taxes, if any, and any other selling costs may exceed the selling price. Further, many lending institutions
will not permit the use of such shares of common stock as collateral for any loans.

You may experience dilution of your ownership interest because of the future issuance of additional shares of
our common stock and our preferred stock.

In the future, we may issue our authorized but previously unissued equity securities, resulting in the dilution of the
ownership interests of our present stockholders. We are currently authorized to issue an aggregate of 9,000,000,000
shares of capital stock consisting of 8,978,999,990 shares of common stock, par value $0.00001 per share and
21,000,010 shares of blank check preferred stock, par value $0.00001 per share.
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We may also issue additional shares of our common stock or other securities that are convertible into or exercisable
for common stock in connection with hiring or retaining employees or consultants, future acquisitions, future sales of
our securities for capital raising purposes, or for other business purposes. The future issuance of any such additional
shares of our common stock or other securities may create downward pressure on the trading price of our common
stock. There can be no assurance that we will not be required to issue additional shares, warrants or other convertible
securities in the future in conjunction with hiring or retaining employees or consultants, future acquisitions, future
sales of our securities for capital raising purposes or for other business purposes, including at a price (or exercise
prices) below the price at which shares of our common stock are trading. 

Item 1B.  Unresolved Staff Comments.

Not applicable.
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Item 2.  Properties.

The following table sets forth pertinent facts concerning our office leases as of March 15, 2016

Location Use Approximate Square
Feet

Annual
Rent

430 North Street

White Plains, NY 10605
Office 650 $8,700

The lease for our office space in White Plains, NY is $725 per month and is renewable annually.   We maintain one
employee at this location. In addition to office space we rent a server room and storage space at this facility.

Item 3.  Legal Proceedings.

We are currently not involved in any litigation that we believe could have a materially adverse effect on our financial
condition or results of operations. There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation before or by any court,
public board, government agency, self-regulatory organization or body pending or, to the knowledge of the executive
officers of our company or any of our subsidiaries, threatened against or affecting our company, our common stock,
any of our subsidiaries or of our company’s or our company’s subsidiaries’ officers or directors in their capacities as
such, in which an adverse decision could have a material adverse effect.

Item 4.  Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.
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PART II

Item 5.  Market for Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.

(a) Market Information

Our common stock is currently quoted on the OTC Pink marketplace under the symbol PVSP.  Until May 1, 2014, it
was listed for quotation on the OTCQB. The high and low quoted closing price for each quarterly period of our last
two fiscal years are listed below:

The following table sets forth the high and low trade information for our common stock for each quarter during the
past two fiscal years.  The prices reflect inter-dealer quotations, do not include retail mark-ups, markdowns or
commissions and do not necessarily reflect actual transactions.

Quarter ended High
Price

Low
Price

1st  Quarter 2014 $0.0024 $0.0008
2nd Quarter 2014 $0.0016 $0.0006
3rd Quarter 2014 $0.0008 $0.0002
4th Quarter 2014 $0.0003 $0.0001
1st  Quarter 2015 $0.0004 $0.0001
2nd Quarter 2015 $0.0035 $0.0002
3rd Quarter 2015 $0.0023 $0.0003
4th Quarter 2015 $0.0005 $0.0002

Recent Issuances of Unregistered Securities

None
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(b) Holders

As of November 30, 2015 a total of 3,652,005,709 shares of the Company’s common stock were outstanding, held by
363 shareholders of record.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

The transfer agent and registrar for our common stock is Worldwide Stock Transfer, LLC with its business address at
One University Plaza, Suite 505, Hackensack, NJ 07601.

(c) Dividends

We have not declared or paid any dividends on our common stock and intend to retain any future earnings to fund the
development and growth of our business. Therefore, we do not anticipate paying dividends on our common stock for
the foreseeable future. Our secured term loans with our primary lender prohibit us from paying dividends to
stockholders.

(d) Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table provides information as of November 30, 2015, with respect to shares of our common stock that
are issuable under equity compensation plans.
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Plan Category

Number of
securities to
be issued
upon
exercise of
outstanding
options,
warrants
and rights
(a)

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding
options, warrants
and rights
(b)

Number of
securities
remaining
available to
future
issuance
under equity
compensation
plans
(excluding
securities
reflected in
column (a))
(c)

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders:
1996 Restricted Stock Plan(1) —  40,000
2007 Equity Incentive Plan (2) —  152,500
2010 Equity Incentive Plan (2) —  24,650,253
Subtotal —  24,842,753

Equity compensation plans not approved by security
holders:

2009 Equity Incentive Plan (2) —  171,000
2011 Equity Incentive Plan (2) 4,000,000 $ .01 16,000,000
Subtotal 4,000,000 16,171,000

Total 4,000,000 41,013,753
___________________________

(1)  Our Restricted Stock Plan provides for the issuance of restricted share grants to officers and non-officer
employees.

(2)  Our 2007, 2009, 2010 and 2011 Equity Incentive Plans allow for the granting of share options to members of our
board of directors, officers, non-officer employees and consultants.

Item 6.  Selected Financial Data.

We are a smaller reporting company as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act and are not required to provide
information under this item.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

THE FOLLOWING DISCUSSION OF OUR PLAN OF OPERATION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
SHOULD BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND RELATED NOTES TO
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS INCLUDED ELSEWHERE IN THIS ANNUAL REPORT. THIS DISCUSSION
CONTAINS FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS THAT RELATE TO FUTURE EVENTS OR OUR FUTURE
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE.  THESE STATEMENTS INVOLVE KNOWN AND UNKNOWN RISKS,
UNCERTAINTIES AND OTHER FACTORS THAT MAY CAUSE OUR ACTUAL RESULTS, LEVELS OF
ACTIVITY, PERFORMANCE OR ACHIEVEMENTS TO BE MATERIALLY DIFFERENT FROM ANY FUTURE
RESULTS, LEVELS OF ACTIVITY, PERFORMANCE OR ACHIEVEMENTS EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED BY
THESE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS.

Overview

The financial statements for the year ended November 30, 2015 include the accounts of Pervasip Corp. and the
activities of its various wholly-owned subsidiaries, its 90% owned subsidiary, Canalytix LLC (Canalytix), and its 60%
owned subsidiary, Grow Big Supply LLC (“Grow Big Supply”). The results of the operations of the Company include
Canalytix since March 25, 2015, and Grow Big since July 6, 2015, the dates on which Pervasip acquired its ownership
interest in those subsidiaries. Any significant inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated.

To the extent that the financial statements included in this report reflect operations occurring prior to the dates on
which we acquired Canalytix and Grow Big Supply, those are the operations of the Company's telecommunications
business. The telecommunications business was terminated on May 31, 2015
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Results of Operations

Our revenues for fiscal 2015 increased by $113,634, or 23%, to $604,953 as compared to $491,319 reported for fiscal
2014.  The increase in revenues was due to the sale of the bulk of our telecommunications business on September 30,
2014, after ten months of operations, compared to 5 months of operations of our hydroponics business, which we
acquired in July 2015. We discontinued our hydroponics business in fiscal 2016 and anticipate that we will become a
scientific analyis agricultural-products company in fiscal 2017.

Our gross profit for fiscal 2015 decreased by $56,544 to $147,747 from a gross profit of $204,291 reported in fiscal
2013, and our gross profit percentage was 24% in fiscal 2014 as compared to 42% in fiscal 2014.  Our
telecominications business regularly ran on gross margins in excess of 40%. However, in 2015, our hydroponics store
faced significant retail competition and kept its prices low to attract customers, which resulted in a gross margin of
24%.

Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased by $281,761, or 27%, to $773,106 for fiscal 2015 from
$1,054,867 reported in the prior year fiscal period.  The decrease is attributable to lower overhead costs in 2015, when
we had full operations for a ten-month period, compared to a five-month period in fiscal 2015.

As a result of the reduction in our selling, general and administrative expenses, our loss from operations for fiscal year
2015 was $225,217 less than our loss from operations in fiscal 2014. Additionally, we reported non-operating income
of $902,685 in fiscal 2015, and increase of $510,907 from $391,778 in fiscal 2014. These changes are:

Interest expense decreased by $424,346 to $1,414,029 for the year ended November 30, 2015 as compared to
$1,838,375 for the prior fiscal year.  The decrease in interest expense was primarily due lower debt levels in fiscal
2015.

There were no debt settlement agreements in fiscal 2014, as compared to troubled debt restructuring gain in fiscal
2015 of $3,868,321 The gains in fiscal 2015 were the result of one-time transactions negotiated with two lenders.  

For the year ended November 30, 2015, we we recorded a gain on the sale of a Canadian subsidiary of $2,571. For the
year ended November 30, 2014, we recorded a gain on the sale of a telecommunications subsidiary of $640,621.
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For the year ended November 30, 2015, we recorded impairment expense of $1,393,690 to write-off intangible assets
and $220,000 to recognize impairment of an other than temporary decline in the value of an investment. No
impairment expenses were recognized in fiscal 2014.

For the year ended November 30, 2015, we recorded a gain on the settlement of liabilities of $2,328,876 as compared
to a gain of $213,961 in the prior fiscal period. Each instance of a liability settlement is contingent upon the terms that
we can negotiate for a particular transaction.

For the year ended November 30, 2015, we recorded the amortization of deferred financing costs of $5,305 as
compared to $83,714 in the prior fiscal period. Each financing and the costs related to a financing, are contingent upon
the terms that we can negotiate for a particular transaction.

For the year ended November 30, 2015, we had a non-cash gain on derivative liabilities of $2,264,449, as compared to
a loss of $1,337,886 in fiscal 2014. The gain in 2015 is due to the lower market value of embedded derivatives in our
debt instruments, at the end of the fiscal year, in comparison with the market value when the debt originated.

For the year ended November 30, 2015, we owned 90 percent of a subsidiary and 60% of another subsidiary. The
aggregate losses of these subsidiaries that was attributable to the noncontrolling owners amounted to $208,396. No
such loss was attributable to others in fiscal 2014 because in 2014 we owned 100% of all our subsidiaries.

Our net result for the year fiscal 2015 was net income of $277,326 as compared to a net loss of $458,798 recorded in
fiscal 2014. Over the past two fiscal years our net results were impacted by 1) the gain we realized when creditors
wrote down our debt, 2) an unrealized gain on the change in market value of derivative liabilities and 3) the sale of a
subsidiary.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

At November 30, 2015, we had cash and cash equivalents of $8,978 and negative working capital of $8,711,742 as
compared to cash and cash equivalents of $1,832 and negative working capital of $9,407,911 at November 30, 2014.

Net cash used in operating activities aggregated $591,596 and $265,005 in fiscal 2015 and 2014, respectively.  In
fiscal 2015 our operations consumed cash, despite our net income recorded for the year, because net income was the
result of gains realized on restructuring of debt of $3,868,321 and a gain on the settlement of liabilities of $2,328,876.
These non-cash income items were offset by non-cash impairment expenses of $1,613,690 and an increase in the fair
market value of derivative liabilities of $2,264,449 in fiscal 2015. Similarly, in fiscal 2014, we reported a gain on the
change in value of derivative liabilities of $1,337,886 that was partially offset by the amortization of debt discount of
$1,199,625.

We financed the cash used in operating activities by obtaining net cash provided by financing activities: $642,727 and
$249,595 in fiscal 2015 and 2014, respectively.  The source of cash from financing activities in fiscal 2015 were net
proceeds from short-term borrowings of $768,010.  Uses of cash consisted of payments of debt of $125,283.   The
source of cash from financing activities in fiscal 2014 were net proceeds from short-term borrowings of
$417,575.  Uses of cash consisted of payments of debt of $167,980.  

In fiscal 2015 cash flows used in investing activities amounted to $43,985, as a result of the purchase of two
subsidiaries and an increase in restricted cash. In fiscal 2015 and 2014, there were no expenditures for capital assets.

 The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles, which contemplate continuation of our company as a going concern.  However, we have sustained net
losses from operations during the last several years, and we have very limited liquidity.  Our operating losses have
been funded through the issuance of equity securities and borrowings. Management anticipates that we will be
dependent, for the near future, on our ability to obtain additional capital to fund our operating expenses and
anticipated growth. The report of our independent registered public accounting firm expresses doubt about our ability
to continue as a going concern.  Our operating losses have been funded through the issuance of equity securities and
borrowings.

Although we have improved our balance sheet with transactions to settle our debt, we continue to have liabilities in
excess of our assets.  We are working to settle our remaining liabilities and to raise cash to support our operating loss,
and we continually consider a variety of possible sources.  We are in default of our senior debt and our subordinated
debt. In the current economic environment, the procurement of outside funding is extremely difficult and there can be
no assurance that such financing will be available, or, if available, that such financing will be at a price that will be
acceptable to us.  If we are unable to generate sufficient revenues or raise additional capital, our operations will
terminate.
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New Accounting Standards

The new accounting pronouncements in Note 1 to our consolidated financial statements, which are included in this
Report, are incorporated herein by reference thereto.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect
on our financial condition or results of operations.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Use of Estimates

In preparing financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, management is
required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period.  The most significant estimates relate to the allowance for doubtful accounts
receivable, income tax valuation allowance, and the derivative liabilities.  On a continual basis, management reviews
its estimates, utilizing currently available information, changes in facts and circumstances, historical experience and
reasonable assumptions.  After such reviews, and if deemed appropriate, those estimates are adjusted
accordingly.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.

17

Edgar Filing: PERVASIP CORP - Form 10-K

39



Revenue Recognition

Revenue on product sales is recognized upon delivery or shipment. Customer deposits/layaway sales are not reported
as income unit final payment is received and the merchandise is delivered. Revenues from voice, data and other
applications and services are recognized in the period in which subscribers use the related services.  Services billed in
advanced, such as line fees, bundled monthly plans or prepaid calling cards, are deferred until they are earned.
Services billed in arrears, such as international usage and wholesale usage, are accrued for in the month the usage
occurred. Equipment sales are recognized when the equipment is shipped.

Costs of Goods Sold

Costs of goods sold is the cost of the merchandise that was sold to customers. Costs of goods sold are measured on the
average cost method. Products are supplies to the hydroponic and gardening industry, including medium (i.e., farming
soil), industry-leading hydroponic equipment, power-efficient lighting, plant nutrients, and thousands of additional
products used by professional growers and specialty cultivation operations.

Share-based Payments

The Company utilizes the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of employee stock option
awards at the date of grant, which requires the input of highly subjective assumptions, including expected volatility
and expected life. Changes in these inputs and assumptions can materially affect the measure of estimated fair value of
share-based compensation. These assumptions are subjective and generally require significant analysis and judgment
to develop. When estimating fair value, some of the assumptions will be based on, or determined from, external data
and other assumptions may be derived from historical experience with stock-based payment arrangements. The
appropriate weight to place on historical experience is a matter of judgment, based on relevant facts and
circumstances.

The Company estimates volatility by considering the historical stock volatility. The Company has opted to use the
simplified method for estimating expected term, which is generally equal to the midpoint between the vesting period
and the contractual term.

Derivatives
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The Company evaluates and accounts for conversion options embedded in convertible instruments in accordance with
ASC 815 “Derivatives and Hedging Activities”.

Accounting standards require companies to bifurcate conversion options from their host instruments and account for
them as free standing derivative financial instruments according to certain criteria. The Company accounts for
convertible instruments (when we have determined that the embedded conversion options should not be bifurcated
from their host instruments) as follows: We record when necessary, discounts to convertible notes for the intrinsic
value of conversion options embedded in debt instruments based upon the differences between the fair value of the
underlying common stock at the commitment date of the note transaction and the effective conversion price embedded
in the note. Debt discounts under these arrangements are amortized over the term of the related debt to their stated
date of redemption.

The Company accounts for the conversion of the underlying derivative of a convertible debt instrument as a gain or
loss. The decrease in debt that results from a debt conversion is calculated and compared to the then-current fair value
of shares issued with any difference recorded as a gain or loss.
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Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carry
forwards.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income
in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.  The ultimate realization of
deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income and the reversal of deferred tax
liabilities during the period in which related temporary differences become deductible.  A valuation allowance has
been established to eliminate the Company’s deferred tax assets as it is more likely than not that any of the deferred tax
assets will be realized.

The Company recognizes the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax
position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position.  The
tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such a position are measured based on the largest benefit that
has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upon settlement with the tax authorities.  Changes in
recognition or measurement are reflected in the period in which the change in judgment occurs.  The Company
records interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense and penalties in income tax expense.  The
Company has determined that it had no significant uncertain tax positions requiring recognition or disclosure.

We continually evaluate our accounting policies and the estimates we use to prepare our consolidated financial
statements. In general, the estimates are based on historical experience, on information from third party professionals
and on various other sources and assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the facts and circumstances at
the time such estimates are made.  Management considers an accounting estimate to be critical if:

●it requires assumptions to be made that were uncertain at the time the estimate was made; and

●changes in the estimate, or the use of different estimating methods, could have a material impact on our consolidated
results of operations or financial condition.

Actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant accounting policies are described in Note 1 to our
consolidated financial statements, which are included in this Report.  In many cases, the accounting treatment of a
particular transaction is specifically dictated by GAAP.  There are also areas in which management’s judgment in
selecting any available alternative would not produce a materially different result.

Item 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.
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We are a smaller reporting company as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act and are not required to provide
information under this item.

Item 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

Our Consolidated Financial Statements required by this Item are included herein, commencing on page F-1.

Item 9.  Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer / Chief Financial Officer, has
evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in SEC Rule 13a-15(e)) as
of November 30, 2015. That evaluation revealed the three material weaknesses identified below (under (b)
Management’s Assessment of Internal Control over Financial Reporting).  Based on that evaluation, the Company’s
Chief Executive Officer / Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of November 30, 2015, such controls and
procedures were not effective.
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(b) Management’s Assessment of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such
term is defined in the Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f).  A system of internal control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the PEO, the Company’s management has
evaluated the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting as of November 30, 2015 based on the
criteria established in a report entitled “Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (1992)” and the interpretive guidance issued by the
Commission in Release No. 34-55929.  Based on this evaluation, the Company’s management has evaluated and
concluded that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was ineffective as of November 30, 2015, and
identified the following material weaknesses:

●There is a lack of accounting personnel with the requisite knowledge of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in
the US (“GAAP”) and the financial reporting requirements of the SEC;

●There are insufficient written policies and procedures to insure the correct application of accounting and financial
reporting with respect to the current requirements of GAAP and SEC disclosure requirements; and

●There is a lack of segregation of duties, in that we only had one person performing all accounting-related duties.

The Company will continue its assessment on a quarterly basis.  We plan to hire personnel and resources to address
these material weaknesses.  We believe these issues can be solved with hiring in-house accounting support and plan to
do so as soon as we have funds available for this purpose.

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company’s independent registered public accounting
firm regarding internal control over financial reporting.  The Company’s registered public accounting firm was not
required to issue an attestation on its internal controls over financial reporting pursuant to the rules of the SEC.  The
Company will continue to evaluate the effectiveness of internal controls and procedures on an on-going basis.

(c) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Edgar Filing: PERVASIP CORP - Form 10-K

44



There have been no changes in our internal controls over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act) during the quarter ended November 30, 2015 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B.  Other Information.

On March 19, 2015 the Company filed Articles of Amendment to its Certificate of Incorporation. The Amendment
designated 800,000 shares of Series H preferred stock from the Company’s previously authorized preferred stock with
a par value per share of $0.00001. Shares of Series H Preferred Stock have conversion rights into shares of Common
Stock. The number of shares of Common Stock to which a holder of Series H Preferred Stock shall be entitled upon a
Conversion shall equal the product obtained by (a) multiplying the number of fully-diluted Common Shares by four
(4), then (b) multiplying the result by a fraction, the numerator of which will be the number of shares of Series H
Preferred Stock being converted and the denominator of which will be the number of authorized shares of Series H
Preferred Stock.

One September 24, 2015, the Company filed an Amendment to its certificate of incorporation to designate 55,000
shares of preferred stock as Series I Preferred Stock (the “Series I Preferred”). Each share of Series I Preferred has a
stated value equal to ten dollars ($10.00) (the "Stated Value"). The relative rights, preferences and limitations of the
Series I Preferred Stock shall be as follows:
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Each share of Series I Preferred Stock shall entitle the holder thereof, on all matters submitted to a vote of the
stockholders of the Company, to that number of votes as shall be equal to the aggregate number of shares of Common
Stock into which such holder's shares of Series I Preferred Stock are convertible on the record date for the stockholder
action without taking into account potential conversions of any other convertible securities issued by the Company.

The Company’s Board of Directors shall not declare a dividend payable to holders of any class of stock other than
Series I Preferred Stock until the Company shall have declared and paid dividends to the holders of Series I Preferred
Stock equal in aggregate to the Stated Value of the outstanding shares of Series I Preferred Stock.

Upon the liquidation, dissolution and winding up of the Company, the holders of the Series I Preferred Stock shall be
entitled to receive in cash out of the net assets of the Company, whether from capital or from earnings available for
distribution to its stockholders, before any amount shall be paid to the holders of common stock or to the holders of
any other class or series of equity stock, an amount equal to (a) the Stated Value of the outstanding shares of Series I
Preferred Stock on the record date for the distribution less (b) the amount of any dividends previously paid to the
holders of the Series I Preferred Stock.

The number of shares of Common Stock to which a holder of Series I Preferred Stock shall be entitled upon a
conversion shall equal the quotient determined by dividing (x) the Stated Value of the shares of Series I Preferred
Stock recited in the conversion notice by (y) the conversion price. The conversion price is one hundred
percent (100%) of the average of the five (5) lowest closing bid prices for the Common Stock during the ten (10)
consecutive trading days immediately preceding the conversion date or other date of determination, as quoted by
Bloomberg, LP

The Company shall not effect any conversions of the Series I Preferred Stock and the holder shall not have the right to
convert any shares of Series I Preferred Stock to the extent that after giving effect to such conversion, the holder,
together with any affiliate thereof, would beneficially own (as determined in accordance with Section 13(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the rules promulgated thereunder) in excess of 4.99% of the number of shares of
Common Stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to such conversion.

One October 14, 2015, the Company filed an Amendment to its certificate of incorporation to designate 51 shares of
preferred stock as Series J Preferred Stock (the “Series J Preferred”). Each share of Series J Preferred has a stated value
equal to $0.00001. The relative rights, preferences and limitations of the Series J Preferred Stock shall be as follows:

There are no Liquidation Rights associated with the Series J Preferred Stock. No conversion of the Series J Preferred
Stock is permitted.
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All shares of the Series J Preferred Stock shall rank (i) senior to the Company’s common stock, par value $0.00001 per
share (“Common Stock”), and any other class or series of capital stock of the Company hereafter created, except as
otherwise provided in clauses (ii) and (iii) of this Article V, (ii) pari passu with any class or series of capital stock of
the Company hereafter created and specifically ranking, by its terms, on par with the Series J Preferred Stock and (iii)
junior to any class or series of capital stock of the Company hereafter created specifically ranking, by its terms, senior
to the Series J Preferred Stock, in each case as to distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of
the Company, whether voluntary or involuntary.

Upon the Company’s receipt of notice of a default or an event of default under or pursuant to any document or
agreement executed by the Company and TCA Global Credit Master Fund, LP (“TCA”), each one (1) share of the Series
J Preferred Stock shall have voting rights equal to (x) 0.019607 multiplied by the total issued and outstanding
Common Stock and Preferred Stock eligible to vote at the time of the respective vote (the “Numerator”), divided by (y)
0.49, minus (z) the Numerator. For the avoidance of doubt, if the total issued and outstanding Common Stock eligible
to vote at the time of the respective vote is 5,000,000, the voting rights of one share of the Series J Preferred Stock
shall be equal to 102,036 (e.g. ((0.019607 x 5,000,000) / 0.49) – (0.019607 x 5,000,000) = 102,036). The issuance of 51
shares of Series J Preferred to TCA gives TCA voting control of the Company if the Company receives a default
notice from TCA, under any agreement between the two entities..

So long as any shares of Series J Preferred Stock are outstanding, the Company shall not, without first obtaining the
unanimous written consent of the holders of Series J Preferred Stock, alter or change the rights, preferences or
privileges of the Series J Preferred so as to affect adversely the holders of Series J Preferred Stock.
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PART III

Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

Directors and Executive Officers

The following table and biographical summaries set forth information, including principal occupation and business
experience, about the sole director and executive officer of Pervasip.  

Name Age Position

Paul H. Riss 61 Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Chairman

Our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation provides that a director shall hold office until the annual
meeting for the year in which his or her term expires except in the case of elections to fill vacancies or newly created
directorships.  While each director is typically elected for a one-year term, we did not have an annual stockholders
meeting for the election of directors in 2015.  The Company’s officers serve at the discretion of the Company’s board of
directors, until their death, or until they resign or have been removed from office.

Paul H. Riss has served as a director since 1995; Chairman of our board of directors since March 2005; our Chief
Executive Officer since August 1999 and our Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer since November 1996.  He has
served on the board of four telecom companies and has more than 30 years of entrepreneurial business and
management experience including the engineering of his own leveraged buyout in 1987 and the audit of numerous
public companies at Ernst & Young.  He is a CPA in New York State and earned an MBA with distinction from the
Stern School of Business at New York University and a magna cum laude BA with distinction from Carleton
College.  We believe Mr. Riss’s qualifications to serve as a director include his tenure as our Chief Executive Officer
and as a member of our Board, and his more than 20 years of service to us with extensive experience in financings,
contract negotiations, acquisitions, budgeting, external reporting and accounting.

Board Meetings and Committees; Management Matters
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Our amended certificate of incorporation provides that the number of members of our board of directors shall be not
less than one and not more than five. Because of the resignation of our three independent directors in 2014, who
served on the board without any cash compensation, and the resignation on September 15, 2014 of our Chief
Information Officer, who also served as a board member, there is currently one director on the Board. At each annual
meeting of stockholders, directors are elected to hold office for a term of one year and until their respective successors
are elected and qualified.

Our board of directors took actions by unanimous consent on 4 occasions during the fiscal year ended November 30,
2015.  No formal meetings were held.  No fees are paid to directors for attendance at meetings or for agreeing to a
unanimous consent or the board of directors.

Compensation Committee

We formerly had a compensation committee of two independent board members. Currently, there is no compensation
committee.  

Nominating Committee

Our board of directors does not have a nominating committee.  Our entire board of directors is responsible for this
function.  Due to the relatively small size of our company and the resulting efficiency of a board of directors that is
also limited in size, our board of directors determined that it is not necessary or appropriate at this time to establish a
separate nominating committee.  

Audit Committee

A written charter approved by our board of directors and attached as Annex A to our 2007 proxy statement, which was
filed with the SEC on May 15, 2007, governs the audit committee. All of the members of the audit committee resigned
from the board of directors in 2014.
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Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act of 1934, requires our directors and executive officers, and persons who own more
than ten percent of a registered class of our equity securities (“10% Shareholders”), to file with the Commission initial
reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of our common stock and other equity securities. Officers,
directors and 10% Shareholders are required by Commission regulation to furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a)
forms they file.

Based solely on our review of the copies of such reports received by us, we believe that for the fiscal year ended
November 30, 2015, all Section 16(a) filing requirements applicable to our officers, directors and 10% shareholders
were complied with.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a code of business conduct and ethics for our directors, officers and employees, including our chief
executive officer and chief financial officer.  In addition, we have adopted a supplemental code of ethics for our
financial executives and all employees in our accounting department.  The text of our codes are posted on our Internet
website at www.canalytix.com.

Item 11.  Executive Compensation.

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth, for the fiscal years indicated, all compensation awarded to, earned by or paid to Mr.
Paul H. Riss, our Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, and Mr. Mark Richards, our former
Chief Information Officer (collectively, the “Named Executives”).  We have no other executive officers.

Fiscal 2015 Summary Compensation Table

Name and Principal Position Year Salary

($) (1)

Bonus

($)
Stock

Awards

Option

Awards
Non-equity
Incentive

Change

in
Pension

All
Other
Compensation
($)

Total

($)
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($)(2) ($)(3) Plan
Compensation
($)

Value
and

Non-Qualified

Deferred

Comp

Earnings

($)

Paul H. Riss, Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer

2015

2014

2013

$ 175,000

131,250

175,000
$

0

0

0

$ 0

0

0
$

0

0

9,190

$ 0

0

0
$

0

0

0

$ 0

0

0
$

175,000

131,250

184,190

Mark Richards

Chief Information Officer

2015

2014

2013

0

135,000

180,000

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

61,330

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

135,000

241,330

(1)

Amounts in this column include unpaid salary to Mr. Riss and Mr. Richards of $439,608 and $77,250,
respectively, at November 30, 2015.  Actual cash payments for salary for 2015, 2014 and 2013 amounted
to$11,542, $100 and $30,000 for Mr. Riss and $0, $68,750 and $169,000 for Mr. Richards.  Mr. Richards
ended his employment in September 2014.

(2)
Amounts in this column reflect the expense recognized for financial reporting purposes for the indicated fiscal
year, in accordance with FASB authoritative guidance, with respect to awards of restricted shares of common
stock, which may include awards made during earlier years as well as the indicated year.

(3)
Amounts in this column reflect the expense recognized for financial reporting purposes for the indicated fiscal
year, in accordance with FASB authoritative guidance, with respect to awards of options to purchase common
stock, which may include awards made during earlier years as well as the indicated year.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End
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The following table sets forth certain information with respect to stock options outstanding as of November 30, 2015,
for each of the named executive officers.   The Named Executives did not exercise any options in Fiscal 2015.
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Option Awards

Name

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options

(#)
Exercisable

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options

(#)
Unexercisable

Equity
Incentive
Plan
Awards (1):
Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Unearned
Options (#) Option

Exercise
Price Option Expiration

Date

Paul H. Riss 4,000,000 - $ 0.01 11/21/2016

Stock Option Grants

There were no stock option grants or exercises in fiscal 2015 for Named Executives.

Board of Directors Compensation

We do not currently compensate directors in cash for service on our board of directors.    We maintain a
Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan (the “Director Option Plan”).  Under the Director Option Plan, each
non-employee director is granted a non-statutory option to purchase 1,000 shares of our common stock on the date on
which he or she is elected, re-elected or appointed to our board of directors.   Options granted pursuant to the Director
Option Plan will vest in full on the one-year anniversary of the grant date, provided the non-employee director is still
our director at that time.  The exercise price granted under the Director Option Plan is 100% of the fair market value
per share of the common stock on the date of the grant as reported on the OTC Marketplace.

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters.
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As of November 30, 2015 there were 3,652,005,709 shares of our common stock issued and outstanding.  Each share
of common stock entitles the holder thereof to one vote with respect to each item to be voted on by holders of the
shares of common stock. We have 10 shares of Series E Preferred stock outstanding, held by our Chief Executive
Officer, as detailed in the chart below. The Series E Preferred stock controls at least 51% of the Company's voting
power, because it has voting rights equal to 4 times the value of the total number of shares of common stock issued
and outstanding at the time of voting, including votes attributable to other shareholders who hold preferred stock.

The following table sets forth information with respect to the beneficial ownership of shares of our common stock as
of November 30, 2015, by:

●       Each person whom we know beneficially owns more than 5% of any class of equity security;
●       each of our directors individually;
●       each of our named executive officers individually; and
●       all of our current directors and executive officers as a group

Unless otherwise indicated, to our knowledge, all persons listed below have sole voting and investment power with
respect to their shares of common stock. Each person listed below disclaims beneficial ownership of their shares,
except to the extent of their pecuniary interests therein. Shares of common stock that an individual or group has the
right to acquire within 60 days of November 30, 2015, pursuant to the exercise of options or restricted stock are
deemed to be outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of such person or group, but are not
deemed outstanding for the purpose of calculating the percentage owned by any other person listed.
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Name and
Address

Number of

Shares of

Common

Stock

Beneficially

Owned

Percent of

Shares of

Common

Stock

Beneficially

Owned

Number of

Shares of

Series D

Preferred

Stock

Beneficially

Owned (3)

Percent of

Shares of

Series D

Preferred

Stock

Beneficially

Owned

Number of

Shares of

Series E, F
and G

Preferred

Stock

Beneficially

Owned (4)

Percent of

Shares of

Series E, F
and G

Preferred

Stock

Beneficially

Owned

Number of

Shares of

Series H

Preferred

Stock

Beneficially

Owned (5)

Percent of

Shares of

Series H

Preferred

Stock

Beneficially

Owned
Flux Carbon
Corporation

5950 Shiloh
Rd.East, Suite
N

Alpharetta, GA
30005

600,000 100.00%

EXO
Opportunity
Fund LLC

PO Box 1453

Wayne, NJ
07474

377,422,770 9.99%

Five Nine
Group LLC

2821 North
Ocean Blvd.,

Suite 604

Fort
Lauderdale, FL
33308

377,422,770 9.99%

Flux Carbon
Starter Fund,
LLC
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411
Hackensack
Ave

Hackensack,
NJ 07601

377,422,770(1)9.99%

Paul H. Riss

430 North
Street

White Plains,

New
York  10605

54,882,533(2) 0.49% 48 94.12% 20,000,010 100.00%

All directors
and executive
officers as a
group (one
individual) 54,882,533 0.49% 48 94.12% 20,000,010 100.00%

(1)Includes 7,422,770 shares of common stock subject to a convertible debenture that is presently exercisable or
exercisable within 60 days after November 30, 2015.

 (2)Includes 33,850,000 shares of common stock subject to warrants and options that are presently exercisable or
exercisable within 60 days after November 30, 2015.

 (3)Each one share of Series D Preferred has voting rights equal to 1% of the total number of shares of common stock
issued and outstanding at the time of voting.

 (4)

Each one share of Series E Preferred has voting rights equal to 4 times the value of the total number of shares of
common stock issued and outstanding at the time of voting, including votes attributable to other shareholders who
hold preferred stock.  Mr. Paul Riss owns 10 shares, or 100% of Series E Preferred Stock, which currently gives
him more than 51% of the Company's total voting power.  The Series F Preferred has voting rights equal to 100
million common shares.  The Series G Preferred has voting rights equal to 10 million common shares

(5) 600,000 shares of Series H Preferred Stock are equivalent to 60% of the Company's total voting
power.

Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.
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Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

At November 30, 2015 and 2014, the total amount due to our chief executive officer, including loans, unpaid salary,
interest and expenses amounted to $1,380,000 and $1,194,021, respectively.
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At November 30, 2015, we owed $222,918 to a company that is controlled by the entity that owns 10% of our voting
control, via ownership of our Series H preferred stock.

At November 30, 2014 the amount of unpaid salary owed to our former chief information officer amounted to
$20,000.

We paid fees to a software consulting firm (“Consultant”) of $126,500 in fiscal 2014. All such work performed by the
Consultant became the property of the Company, and was sold on September 30, 2014, as noted below.  Our former
chief information officer performed work for the Consultant, including disbursement services, in which funds that
were remitted by the Company to a company controlled by the officer were subsequently distributed for the
Consultant to appropriate vendors. For services rendered to the Consultant, our chief information officer was paid $
6,000 in fiscal 2014.

On September 30, 2014, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a contract of sale to transfer certain
assets and liabilities, including a copy of internally developed mobile content delivery software to Vaxstar LLC (the
“Buyer”). The Buyer simultaneously assigned the contract of sale to Valuesetters, Inc. (the “Assignee”). The Buyer agreed
to pay the Company 40,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.001, of the Assignee, which are included in
Marketable Securities at November 30, 2015 and 2014. Although we had negotiated the details of the transaction with
the Buyer before our chief information officer resigned from our Company, our former chief information officer
signed the purchase agreement as the Buyer’s chief executive officer. We calculated a gain from the contract of sale
amounting to $779,645, and recorded this gain as an addition to paid-in capital because of the related-party nature of
the transaction.  

Director Independence

Our common stock is currently quoted on the OTC Pink market and is not listed on the Nasdaq Stock Market or any
other national securities exchange. Accordingly, we are not currently subject to the Nasdaq continued listing
requirements or the requirements of any other national securities exchange. Nevertheless, in determining whether a
director or nominee for director should be considered “independent” the board utilizes the definition of independence set
forth in Rule 4200(a)(15) of the Nasdaq Marketplace Rules.  Pursuant to that definition, we do not have an
independent member of our Board of Directors.

Item 14.  Principal Accounting Fees and Services.
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The following table presents fees for professional audit services rendered by the principal independent accountant for
Pervasip Corp. Rosenberg Rich Baker Berman & Company for the audit of our annual financial statements for the
years ended November 30, 2015 and 2014.

2015 2014
Audit fees $60,000 $60,000
Audit related fees
Tax fees
All other fees
Total $60,000 $60,000
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Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services of Independent
Auditors

Consistent with SEC policies regarding auditor independence, the Audit Committee has responsibility for appointing,
setting compensation and overseeing the work of the independent auditor. In recognition of this responsibility, the
Audit Committee has established a policy to pre-approve all audit and permissible non-audit services provided by the
independent auditor.

Prior to engagement of the independent auditor for the next year's audit, management will submit an aggregate of
services expected to be rendered during that year for each of four categories of services to the Audit Committee for
approval.

1. Audit services include audit work performed in the preparation of financial statements, as well as work that
generally only the independent auditor can reasonably be expected to provide, including comfort letters and reviews of
our financial statements included in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q.

2. Audit-Related services are for assurance and related services that are traditionally performed by the independent
auditor, including due diligence related to mergers and acquisitions, employee benefit plan audits, and special
procedures required to meet certain regulatory requirements.

3. Tax services include all services performed by the independent auditor's tax personnel except those services
specifically related to the audit of the financial statements, and includes fees in the areas of tax compliance, tax
planning, and tax advice.

4. Other services are those associated with services not captured in the other categories. We generally do not request
such services from the independent auditor.

Prior to engagement, the Audit Committee pre-approves these services by category of service. The Audit Committee
may delegate pre-approval authority to one or more of its members.  The member to whom such authority is delegated
must report, for informational purposes only, any pre-approval decisions to the Audit Committee at its next scheduled
meeting.
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With the resignation in 2014 of the members of the Audit Committee, the responsibilities of the Audit Committee
described above have been assumed by the Board of Directors.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

Exhibit
No. Document

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, incorporated by reference to our Registration Statement on Form
S-1 filed with the SEC on August 27, 1969 under Registration Number 2-34436.

3.2
Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to our definitive
proxy statement filed with the SEC in connection with our Annual Meeting of Shareholders held in May
1984.

3.3 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(b) to
our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 1988.

3.4 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(e) to
our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 1994, as amended.

3.5 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3 to our
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 30, 1995.

3.6 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(f) to
our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 1998.

3.7 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to
our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 31, 1998.

3.8 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(1) to
our Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 16, 1999.

3.9 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(1) to
our Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 28, 2007.

3.10 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
our Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 23, 2012.

3.11 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
our Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 21, 2012.

3.12 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
our Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 18, 2013.

3.13 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
our Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 30, 2013.
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3.14 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
our Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 13, 2013.

3.15 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation dated April 14, 2014, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.15 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 2013.

3.16 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
our Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 19, 2015.

3.17 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 31, 2015.

3.18 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to
our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 31, 2015.

3.17 By-laws, amended and restated as of December 1996, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(e) to our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 1996.

28

Edgar Filing: PERVASIP CORP - Form 10-K

63



Exhibit
No. Document

4.1
Convertible Promissory Note dated October 14, 2015 in the principal amount of $500,000 payable to TCA
Global Credit Master Fund, LP. , incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our Current Report on Form
8-K dated October 14, 2015.

4.2 Convertible Promissory Note dated November 18, 2015 in the principal amount of $100,000 payable to
TCA Global Credit Master Fund, LP. *

10.1
Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan, dated March 30, 2001, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(c) to
our Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the year ended November 30, 2003, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 14, 2015

10.2 2007 Equity Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Annex B to our Proxy Statement dated May 15, 2007.

10.3 2009 Equity Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Annex A to our Proxy Statement dated April 9, 2009.

10.4 Securities Purchase Agreement by and between Pervasip Corp. and 112359 Factor Fund, LLC, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 6, 2013.

10.5 Securities Purchase Agreement by and between Pervasip Corp. and 112359 Factor Fund, LLC, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated July 22, 2013.

10.6
Settlement and Release Agreement by and between Pervasip Corp. and the Pension Benefit Guarantee
Corporation, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 9,
2015.

10.7 Securities Purchase Agreement by and between Pervasip Corp. and Flux Carbon Corporation, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 19, 2014.

10.8
Securities Purchase Agreement dated October 14, 2015 by and between Pervasip Corp. and TCA Global Credit
Master Fund, LP., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated October
14, 2015.

31.1 Certification by the Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
(Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a)).*

31.2 Certification by the Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (Rule
13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a)).*

32.1 Certification by the Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

32.2 Certification by the Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*
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* filed herewith  
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

PERVASIP CORP.

Date: December 14, 2016 By:  /s/ Paul H. Riss
Name:  Paul H. Riss

Title:

Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)

(Principal Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ Paul H. Riss Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer), Chief December 14,2016
Paul H. Riss Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer) (Principal

Accounting Officer),  Chairman of the Board
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and

Stockholders of Pervasip Corp. & Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Pervasip Corporation & Subsidiaries as of November 30, 2015
and 2014, and the related statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each
of the years in the two-year period ended November 30, 2015. Pervasip Corporation’s management is responsible for
these financial statements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The company is not required to have, nor were we
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Pervasip Corporation & Subsidiaries as of November 30, 2015 and 2014, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended November 30, 2015, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going
concern. As more fully discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Company has sustained recurring
substantial losses from its continuing operations, and has negative working capital and a significant stockholders’
deficit as of November 30, 2015. In addition, the Company is unable to meet its obligations as they become due to
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sustain its operations. These conditions raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern.
Management’s plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 2. The financial statements do not include
any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

/s/ Rosenberg Rich Baker Berman & Company

Somerset, New Jersey

December 13, 2016

F-1
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PERVASIP CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2015 AND 2014

2015 2014
ASSETS
Current assets:
 Cash and cash equivalents $8,978 $1,832
 Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $98,739 in 2015 7,183 —  
 Inventory 127,650 —  
 Restricted securities 220,000 1,040,000
 Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,915 3,337

 Total current assets 365,726 1,045,169

 Equipment and leasehold improvements, net 18,817 —  
 Restricted cash 60,000 —  
Other assets —  7,119

Total assets $444,543 $1,052,288

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt, net of discounts of $491,027 and $189,270,
respectively $2,932,018 $4,631,122

Accounts payable and other current liabilities 1,622,649 1,922,748
Accounts payable and other current liabilities - related party 431,313 410,333
Due to Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation 2,104,410 2,001,984
Deposits payable 147,890 43,476
Sales tax payable 28,665 —  
Related party debt 1,178,311 804,078
Derivative liabilities 692,212 639,339

Total current liabilities 9,137,468 10,453,080

Long-term debt less current portion 409,614 —  

Total liabilities 9,547,082 10,453,080

Redeemable preferred stock Series I, $0.00001 par value; 55,000 shares authorized;
27,500 and 0 shares issued and outstanding, redemption amount of $275,000 710 —  
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Redeemable preferred stock Series D,  $0.00001 par value; 51 shares authorized; 51
shares issued and outstanding, redemption amount of $51 —  —  

Stockholders’ deficit:
Preferred stock, $0.00001 par value; 144,949 shares authorized, —  —  
Convertible preferred stock, $0.00001 par value; 20,800,010 authorized
Series E: 10 and 0 shares issued and outstanding, respectively —  —  
Series F: 10,000,000 and 0 shares issued and outstanding 100 —  
Series G: 10,000,000 and 0 shares issued and outstanding 100 —  
Series H: 600,000 and 0 shares issued and outstanding 6 —  
Series I: 7,500 and 0 shares issued and outstanding —  —  
Series J: 51 and 0 shares issued and outstanding —  —  
Common stock, $0.00001 par value; 8,978,999,990 shares authorized, 3,652,005,709
and 1,194,549,997 shares issued and outstanding in 2015 and 2014 36,520 11,945

Capital in excess of par value 42,448,241 41,750,912
Accumulated other comprehensive income —  601,183
Accumulated deficit (51,379,820) (51,764,832)
Total Pervasip Corp. stockholder’s deficit (8,894,853 ) (9,400,792 )
Noncontrolling interest in subsidiaries (208,396 ) —  
Total stockholder’s deficit (9,103,249 ) (9,400,792 )
Total liabilities and stockholders’ deficit $444,543 $1,052,288

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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PERVASIP CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2015 AND 2014

2015 2014

Revenues $604,953 $491,319

Cost and expenses:
Costs of services 457,206 287,028
Selling, general and administrative 773,106 1,054,867
Total costs and expenses 1,230,312 1,341,895

Loss from operations (625,359 ) (850,576 )

Other income (expense):
Interest expense (1,414,029 ) (1,838,375 )
Amortization of deferred finance costs (5,305 ) (83,714 )
Other, net 390 121,399
Gain on troubled debt restructuring 3,868,321 —
Impairment of intangible assets (1,393,690 ) —
Impairment of investment (total $820,000 less $600,000 previously  recognized in
other comprehensive income) (220,000 ) —

Gain on sale of subsidiary 2,571 640,621
Gain on settlement of liabilities 2,328,876 213,961
Gain (loss) on change in value of derivative liabilities (2,264,449 ) 1,337,886

Total other income 902,685 391,778
Net income (loss) 277,326 (458,798 )
Loss from noncontrolling interest 208,396 —
Net income (loss) attributable to Pervasip Corp. 485,722 (458,798 )
Accretion of preferred stock dividends 100,710 —
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders $385,012 $(458,798 )

Basic earnings per share $0.00 $0.00
Diluted earnings per share $0.00 $0.00
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Weighted average number of shares outstanding:
Basic 3,079,122,127 980,488,901
Diluted 22,427,520,702 980,488,901

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PERVASIP CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2015 AND 2014

2015 2014

Net income (loss) $277,326 $(458,798)

Other Comprehensive income:
 Other reclassification into earnings (1,183 ) —  
 Increase (decrease) in value of restricted securities (600,000) 600,000
      Total Comprehensive income (loss) $(601,183) $600,000

Comprehensive income (loss) $(323,857) $141,202

Edgar Filing: PERVASIP CORP - Form 10-K

77



See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PERVASIP CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(LOSS)

FOR THE YEARS ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2015 AND 2014

Preferred Stock Common Stock  Accumulated
Other

Shares AmountShares Amount
 Capital in
Excess of Par
Value

Accumulated
Deficit

Comprehensive
Income
(Loss)

Non-
Controlling
Interest

Total Stock-
holders'
Deficit

Balance, December 1,
2013 799,549,997 $7,997 $40,643,010 $(51,306,034) $1,183 $(10,653,844)

Net income (loss) (458,798 ) (458,798 )
Gain of sale of
business to related
party

779,644 779,644

Stock- based
compensation 25,866 25,866

Increase in value of
restricted securities 600,000 600,000

Note payable settled in
common shares 5,000,000 50 9,450 9,500

Issuance of common
stock for settlement of
liabilities

390,000,000 3,898 292,942 296,840

Balance, November
30, 2014 —  $—  1,194,549,997 11,945 41,750,912 (51,764,832) 601,183 $—  (9,400,792 )

Net income (loss) 485,722 (208,396) 277,326
Stock-based
compensation 7,551 —  400 78,600 79,000

Reclassification of
available-for-sale
securities upon
other-than-temporary
impairment

(600,000) (600,000 )

Warrant issued for
payables 18,000 18,000

Payables converted
into preferred stock 20,000,010 200 99,800 100,000

Note payable settled in
common shares

600,000 6 66,833 (1,183 ) 65,656
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Acquisition/disposition
of subsidiaries
Intrinsic value of
beneficial conversion
feature – preferred stock

100,000 100,000

Preferred stock
dividends (100,710 ) (100,710 )

Issuance of stock
for settlement of
liabilities

24,175 334,096 358,270

Balance, November
30, 2015 20,607,561 $206 3,652,005,709 $36,520 $42,448,241 $(51,379,820) $—  $(208,396) $(9,103,849 )

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PERVASIP CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2015 AND 2014

Year Year
Ended Ended
November
30,

November
30,

2015 2014
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss) $277,326 $(458,798 )
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in operating activities:
Stock-based compensation 79,000 25,866
Change in provision for bad debt —  (731 )
Amortization of debt discount 691,150 1,199,625
Amortization of deferred finance costs 5,305 83,714
Depreciation 6,699 —  
Partial sale of business assets —  364
Impairment of intangibles 1,393,690 —  
Impairment of investment 220,000 —  
Gain on sale of subsidiary (1,183 ) (640,180 )
Gain on troubled debt restructuring (3,868,321) —  
Gain on settlement of debt (2,328,876) (213,961 )
Change in fair value of derivative liabilities 2,264,449 (1,337,886)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 14,492 50,523
Inventory 90,495 —  
Prepaid expenses and other assets 3,336 5,433 )
Due to Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation 102,426 97,440
Accounts payable, other current liabilities (635,106 ) 816,707
Accounts payable, other current liabilities – related party 300,260 106,879
Net cash used in operating activities (591,596 ) (265,005 )

Cash flows from investing activities:
     Increase in cash placed under restriction (60,000 ) —  
     Cash acquired in acquisitions of businesses 16,015 —  
Net cash used in investing activities (43,985 ) —  

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 768,010 369,500
Proceeds from (repayments on) borrowings – related party (31,736 ) 48,075
Principal payments of debt (103,547 ) (167,980 )
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Net cash provided by financing activities 642,727 249,595

Net increase (decrease) in cash 7,146 (15,410 )

Cash at beginning of the year 1,832 17,242

Cash at end of the year $8,978 $1,832

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for:
Income taxes $—  $—  
Interest $38,642 $79,026
Non-cash financing transactions:
Fair value of derivative liabilities recorded as debt discount $477,583 $386,016
Conversion of accounts payable and accrued liabilities to notes payable $163,458 $297,484

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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PERVASIP CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2015 AND 2014

1. Description of Business and Summary of Accounting Policies

Description of Business

Pervasip Corp. (“Pervasip”, or the “Company”) is engaged in the business of owning and operating a retail hydroponic
store in Denver, Colorado, through a wholly owned subsidiary. Until May 31, 2015, it also operated as an
application-based Internet company, providing low-cost telephone services, connecting people through
cloud-connected devices worldwide.    

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned and partially owned
subsidiaries after elimination of significant intercompany balances and transactions. The operations of a 90% owned
subsidiary, Canalytix LLC, is included beginning on March 25, 2015, and the operations of a 60% owned subsidiary,
Grow Big Supply, LLC is included beginning on July 6, 2015.

Use of Estimates

In preparing financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, management is
required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period.  The most significant estimates relate to the derivative liabilities, income tax
valuation allowance, and the allowance for doubtful accounts receivable.  On a continual basis, management reviews
its estimates, utilizing currently available information, changes in facts and circumstances, historical experience and
reasonable assumptions.  After such reviews, and if deemed appropriate, those estimates are adjusted
accordingly.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. The Company did not have any cash equivalents during 2015 and 2014. At November 30, 2015, it
had restricted cash of $60,000, held in an escrow fund to be designated for uses approved by its secured lender.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are presented as a part of selling, general and administrative costs. Advertising costs are expensed as
incurred and amounted to $8,256 in fiscal 2015 and $0 in fiscal 2014.

Marketable securities

The Company classifies investments in equity securities bought and held primarily to be sold in the short term that
have readily determinable fair values, as trading securities. Unrealized holding gains and losses for trading securities
are included in earnings. Any unrealized holding gains and losses from available-for-sale securities are excluded from
earnings and are recorded in comprehensive income until a gain or loss has been realized, unless an impairment in
value is determined. The Company recognized an investment impairment loss in fiscal 2015 of $820,000, for which
$600,000 had previously been recognized in other comprehensive income, and $220,000 is recorded as a loss in the
statement of operations for fiscal 2015.

Collectibility of Accounts Receivable

Trade receivables potentially subject the Company to credit risk.  Accounts receivable are stated at the amount the
Company expects to collect from balances outstanding at year-end. Based on the Company's assessment of the credit
history with customers having outstanding balances and current relationships with them.

At November 30, 2014, all customers were on a prepay basis. Consumers that used the Company’s mobile Voice over
Internet Protocol (“VoIP”) application, were required to prepay for all mobile telephone services via a credit card or an
online payment service, such as Paypal. Before September 30, 2014, the Company had wholesale customers, which
typically provided a security deposit and paid for their services each month, in arrears.
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In order to record the Company’s accounts receivable at their net realizable value, the Company must assess their
collectibility.  A considerable amount of judgment is required in order to make this assessment, including an analysis
of historical bad debts and other adjustments, a review of the aging of the Company’s receivables, and the current
creditworthiness of the Company’s customers.  Generally, when a customer account reached a certain level of
delinquency, the Company discontinues credit sales to the customer and provides an allowance for the related amount
receivable from the customer.  At November 30, 2015, the Company has recorded an allowance of $98,739 for
receivables that it considered uncollectible, including amounts for the resolution of potential credit and other
collection issues, such as disputed invoices and pricing discrepancies.  However, depending on how such potential
issues are resolved, or if the financial condition of any of the Company’s customers was to deteriorate and its ability to
make required payments became impaired, increases in these allowances may be required.  The Company writes off
the accounts receivable balance from a customer and the related allowance established when it believes it has
exhausted all reasonable collection efforts.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue on product sales is recognized upon delivery or shipment. Customer deposits/layaway sales are not reported
as income unit final payment is received and the merchandise is delivered. Revenues from voice, data and other
applications and services are recognized in the period in which subscribers use the related services.  Services billed in
advanced, such as line fees, bundled monthly plans or prepaid calling cards, are deferred until they are earned.
Services billed in arrears, such as international usage and wholesale usage, are accrued for in the month the usage
occurred. Equipment sales are recognized when the equipment is shipped.

Costs of Goods Sold

Costs of products sold are measured on the average cost method. Products are supplies to the hydroponic and
gardening industry, including medium (i.e., farming soil), industry-leading hydroponic equipment, power-efficient
lighting, plant nutrients, and thousands of additional products used by professional growers and specialty cultivation
operations. Cost of services sold consist primarily of direct costs that we paid to third parties in order to provide
telephone services.  These costs include access and interconnection charges that we paid to other telephone companies
to terminate domestic and international phone calls on the public switched telephone network. These costs do not
include indirect costs such as depreciation and amortization, payroll, and facilities costs.

Inventory

Inventory consists primarily of gardening supplies and materials and is recorded at the lower of cost (average cost
method) or market. All inventory consists of finished goods.
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Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed primarily using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from 3 to 5 years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the
shorter of the useful life of the related assets or the lease term. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged
to expense as incurred. For assets sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are
removed from the accounts, and any related gain or loss is reflected in income for the period. All of the Company’s
property and equipment was acquired on July 6, 2015. At November 30, 2015, it consisted of the following:

Furniture and fixtures $2,002
Leasehold improvements 14,503
Computer equipment 9,011
Subtotal $25,516
Less accumulated depreciation (6,699 )
Total $18,817

Depreciation expense for the year ended November 30, 2015 was $6,699. 

Share-based Payments

The Company utilizes the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of employee stock option
awards at the date of grant, which requires the input of highly subjective assumptions, including expected volatility
and expected life. Changes in these inputs and assumptions can materially affect the measure of estimated fair value of
share-based compensation. These assumptions are subjective and generally require significant analysis and judgment
to develop. When estimating fair value, some of the assumptions will be based on, or determined from, external data
and other assumptions may be derived from historical experience with stock-based payment arrangements. The
appropriate weight to place on historical experience is a matter of judgment, based on relevant facts and
circumstances.

The Company estimates volatility by considering the historical stock volatility. The Company has opted to use the
simplified method for estimating expected term, which is generally equal to the midpoint between the vesting period
and the contractual term.
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Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carry
forwards.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income
in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.  The ultimate realization of
deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income and the reversal of deferred tax
liabilities during the period in which related temporary differences become deductible.  A valuation allowance has
been established to eliminate the Company’s deferred tax assets as it is more likely than not that any of the deferred tax
assets will be realized.

The Company recognizes the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax
position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position.  The
tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such a position are measured based on the largest benefit that
has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upon settlement with the tax authorities.  Changes in
recognition or measurement are reflected in the period in which the change in judgment occurs.  The Company
records interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense and penalties in income tax expense.  The
Company has determined that it had no significant uncertain tax positions requiring recognition or disclosure.

Convertible Instruments

The Company evaluates and accounts for conversion options embedded in convertible instruments in accordance with
ASC 815 “Derivatives and Hedging Activities”.

Accounting standards require companies to bifurcate conversion options from their host instruments and account for
them as free standing derivative financial instruments according to certain criteria. The Company accounts for
convertible instruments (when we have determined that the embedded conversion options should not be bifurcated
from their host instruments) as follows: We record when necessary, discounts to convertible notes for the intrinsic
value of conversion options embedded in debt instruments based upon the differences between the fair value of the
underlying common stock at the commitment date of the note transaction and the effective conversion price embedded
in the note. Debt discounts under these arrangements are amortized over the term of the related debt to their stated
date of redemption.

The Company accounts for the conversion of the underlying derivative of a convertible debt instrument as a gain or
loss. The decrease in debt that results from a debt conversion is calculated and compared to the then-current fair value
of shares issued with any difference recorded as a gain or loss.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of shares
outstanding.  To the extent that stock options and warrants are anti-dilutive, they are excluded from the calculation of
diluted earnings per share.  Diluted earnings per share includes the dilutive effect of stock options and warrants.  
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Concentrations

As of November 30, 2015, one customer accounted for 12% of the gross amount of accounts receivable, and such
amount was fully reserved.  For the year ended November 30, 2015, no one customer accounted for more than 10% of
the Company’s revenues. Two customers that accounted for 27% and 24% of our revenues in fiscal 2014. These two
customers were part of the assets we sold on September 30, 2014.

The Company is dependent on the availability and functionality of three large suppliers, and the loss of any two of
these entities as vendors would be disruptive to our operations and ability to sell products.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as all changes in stockholders’ equity (deficit), exclusive of transactions with
owners, such as capital investments. Comprehensive income includes net income or loss, changes in certain assets and
liabilities that are reported directly in equity such as translation adjustments on investments in foreign subsidiaries and
unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities.

F-9
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers which modifies how all
entities recognize revenue and various other revenue accounting standards for specialized transactions and industries.
This update is a comprehensive new revenue recognition model that requires a company to recognize revenue to
depict the transfer of goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-14, which
deferred the effective date of the ASU to fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within
those fiscal years.  We are currently evaluating the possible impact of ASU 2014-09, but we do not anticipate that it
will have a material impact on the Company's consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

In August 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”)
ASU No. 2014-15, Presentation of Financial Statements-Going Concern-Disclosures of Uncertainties about an entity’s
Ability to Continue as a Going Concern.  ASU 2014-15 provides new guidance related to management’s responsibility
to evaluate whether there is substantial doubt about an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern by incorporating
and expanding upon certain principles that are currently in U.S. auditing standards and to provide related footnote
disclosures. This new guidance is effective for the annual period ending after December 15, 2016, and for annual
periods and interim periods thereafter. We do not expect the adoption of ASU 2014-15 to have a significant impact on
the Company's consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, “Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs.”  ASU 2015-03
requires debt issuance costs to be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the associated debt
liability.  ASU 2015-03 is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015.  The
new guidance will be applied on a retrospective basis and early adoption is permitted.  The Company chose early
adoption of the new guidance, which resulted in an additional debt discount at November 30, 2015 of $258,065, due to
financing fees.

In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-17, “Income Taxes (Topic 740) – Balance Sheet Classification of
Deferred Taxes.” To simplify the presentation of deferred income taxes, the amendments in this Update require that
deferred tax liabilities and assets be classified as noncurrent in a classified statement of financial position.  The
amendments in this Update apply to all entities that present a classified statement of financial position.  The current
requirement that deferred tax liabilities and assets of a tax-paying component of an entity be offset and presented as a
single amount is not affected by the amendments in this Update.  For public business entities, the amendments in this
Update are effective for financial statements issued for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim
periods within those annual periods.  For all other entities, the amendments in this Update are effective for financial
statements issued for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2018.  Earlier application is permitted for all entities as of the beginning of an interim
or annual reporting period.  The amendments in this Update may be applied either prospectively to all deferred tax
liabilities and assets or retrospectively to all periods presented.  If an entity applies the guidance prospectively, the
entity should disclose in the first interim and first annual period of change, the nature of and reason for the change in
accounting principle and a statement that prior periods were not retrospectively adjusted.  If an entity applies the
guidance retrospectively, the entity should disclose in the first interim and first annual period of change the nature of
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and reason for the change in accounting principle and quantitative information about the effects of the accounting
change on prior periods.  We do not expect the adoption of ASU 2015-17 to have a significant impact on our
consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01 – “Financial Instruments – Overall (Subtopic 825-10) – Recognition and
Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.”  ASU 2016-01, among other changes, requires equity
investments (except those accounted for under the equity method of accounting or those that result in consolidation of
the investee) to be measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in net income.  This Update also
simplifies the impairment assessment of equity investments without readily determinable fair values by requiring a
qualitative assessment to identify impairment.  The amendments in ASU 2016-01 will become effective for public
business entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those fiscal
years.  We are currently evaluating the effect of the adoption of ASU 2016-01 will have on our consolidated results of
operations, financial position or cash flows.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02 – “Leases (Topic 842).” Under ASU 2016-02, entities will be required
to recognize lease asset and lease liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating leases.  Among other
changes in accounting for leases, a lessee should recognize in the statement of financial position a liability to make
lease payments (the lease liability) and a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the
lease term.  When measuring assets and liabilities arising from a lease, a lessee (and a lessor) should include payments
to be made in optional periods only if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend the lease or not to
exercise an option to terminate the lease.  Similarly, optional payments to purchase the underlying asset should be
included in the measurement of lease assets and lease liabilities only if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
purchase option.  The amendments in ASU 2016-02 will become effective for fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2018, including interim periods with those fiscal years, for public business entities.  We are currently evaluating
the effect of the adoption of ASU 2016-02 will have on our consolidated results of operations, financial position or
cash flows.
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In March 2016, the FASB issued ASC 2016-09 – “Compensation – Stock Compensation (Topic 718) – Improvements to
Employee Share-based Payment Accounting.”  The areas for simplification in this Update involve several aspects of
the accounting for share-based payment transactions, including the income tax consequences, classification of awards
as either equity or liabilities, and classification on the statement of cash flows.  In addition to these simplifications, the
amendments eliminate the guidance in Topic 718 that was indefinitely deferred shortly after the issuance of FASB
Statement No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment.  The amendments in ASC 2016-09 will become effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim periods within those annual periods.  Early adoption is
permitted for any entity in any interim or annual period. If an entity early adopts the amendments in an interim period,
any adjustments should be reflected as of the beginning of the fiscal year that includes that interim period.  An entity
that elects early adoption must adopt all of the amendments in the same period.  We are currently evaluating the effect
of the adoption of ASU 2016-09 will have on our consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classification of Certain Cash
Receipt and Cash Payments. The new guidance addresses certain classification issues related to the statement of cash
flows which will eliminate the diversity of practice in how certain cash receipts and cash payments are presented and
classified in the statement of cash flows. The guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 2017.
Early adoption is permitted. We are currently evaluating the possible impact of ASU 2016-15, but do not anticipate
that it will have a material impact on the Company's consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash
flows.

In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-17, Consolidation (Topic 810): Interests Held through Related Parties
That Are under Common Control. The new guidance amends the consolidation guidance on how a reporting entity
that is the single decision make of a VIE should treat indirect interests in the entity held through related parties that are
under common control with the reporting entity when determining whether it is the primary beneficiary of that VIE.
The guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 2016. Early adoption is permitted. We are
currently evaluating the possible impact of ASU 2016-17, but do not anticipate that it will have a material impact on
the Company's consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

2. Going Concern Matters and Realization of Assets

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the
realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. However, the Company has
sustained recurring substantial losses from its continuing operations and as of November 30, 2015 has negative
working capital of $8,771,742 and a stockholders’ deficit of $9,103,249. In addition, the Company is unable to meet its
obligations as they become due and sustain its operations.  The Company believes that its existing cash resources are
not sufficient to fund its continuing operating losses, capital expenditures, lease and debt payments and working
capital requirements.
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The Company may not be able to raise sufficient additional debt, equity or other cash on acceptable terms, if at
all.  Failure to generate sufficient revenues, achieve certain other business plan objectives or raise additional funds
could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations, cash flows and financial position,
including its ability to continue as a going concern, and may require it to significantly reduce, reorganize, discontinue
or shut down its operations.

In view of the matters described above, recoverability of a major portion of the recorded asset amounts shown in the
accompanying balance sheet is dependent upon continued operations of the Company which, in turn, is dependent
upon the Company’s ability to meet its financing requirements on a continuing basis, and to succeed in its future
operations.  The financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of
recorded asset amounts or amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be
unable to continue in its existence.  Management’s plans include efforts to preserve current revenue sources, develop
new revenue sources and negotiate further debt reductions with creditors.

There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to achieve its business plan objectives or be able to achieve
or maintain cash-flow-positive operating results. If the Company is unable to generate adequate funds from operations
or raise sufficient additional funds, the Company may not be able to repay its existing debt, continue to operate its
network, respond to competitive pressures or fund its operations. As a result, the Company may be required to
significantly reduce, reorganize, discontinue or shut down its operations. The financial statements do not include any
adjustments that might result from this uncertainty. Management plans to resolve the Company’s working capital
deficit by increasing revenue, reducing debt and exploring new financing options.
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3. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

2015 2014

Trade payables $941,923 $611,799
Payable from sale of subsidiaries —  796,499
Other, individually less than 5% of current liabilities 680,726 514,450

$1,622,649 $1,922,748

When the Company sold certain subsidiaries in December 2006, the Company agreed to reimburse the purchaser for
certain disputed claims on the books of the subsidiaries if the sold subsidiaries were required to pay such claims.  At
November 30, 2015 and 2014, the Company recorded a payable of $0 and $796,499, respectively, in conjunction with
the sale of the subsidiaries. The former subsidiaries filed for bankruptcy, and on September 25, 2015, the Trustee’s
Final Account for the bankruptcy case noted that no payments were made to the vendor in question. Consequently, the
Company removed the liability in its fourth fiscal quarter and recorded other income of $796,499.

4. Debt

The following table summarizes components of debt as of November 30, 2015 and 2014:

2015 2014

Debt due to Laurus $—  $2,266,186
Senior secured convertible redeemable debenture due to TCA 600,000 —  
Convertible subordinated debt 2,687,461 1,935,190
Convertible debt due to various lenders 320,750 448,520
Other short-term debt due to various lenders 224,448 170,496
Total debt 3,832,659 4,820,392
Less: current portion of long-term debt (2,932,018) (4,631,122)
Less: discount on debt (491,027 ) (189,270 )
Total long-term debt, net of discounts $409,614 $—  

At November 30, 2015, future payments under long-term debt obligations over each of the next five years and
thereafter were as follows:
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Twelve months ended November 30:
2016 $3,423,045
2017 —  
2018 —  
2019 —  
2020 409,614
Minimum future payments of principal $3,832,659

Debt due to Laurus

As of November 30, 2014, the Company owed a third party lender, LV Administrative Services, Ltd., as agent for
Laurus Master Fund, Ltd. and various affiliates (“Laurus”), a total of $2,266,186.   All of such debt became due by its
terms on September 28, 2010 and carried an annual interest rate ranging from 5.25% to 20%.  The Company had not
made payments of principal or interest when due, and was not in compliance with its agreements with Laurus. Laurus
had not issued a default notice and had signed an agreement, on two separate occasions, to sell all of its debt at a
discount to a third party, however the third parties did not fulfill all of the terms of the agreements. In January 2015,
EXO Opportunity Fund, LLC (“EXO”) purchased the remaining Laurus debt and agreed to pay $100,000 to Laurus.
EXO paid $30,000, but did not pay the remaining $70,000, despite repeated requests. On October 14, 2015, the
Company closed a Securities Purchase Agreement and related agreements with TCA Global Credit Master Fund LP
(“TCA”) whereby the Company sold to TCA a $500,000 senior secured convertible redeemable debenture (“TCA
Debenture 1”). From the proceeds of the TCA Debenture 1, the Company paid $70,000 to Laurus in full settlement of
the remaining balances owed to Laurus. Given that the Company is experiencing financial difficulties and Laurus
granted a concession by accepting total payments of $100,000 for the remaining balance of the principal and interest
due, the Company accounted for such transactions as a troubled debt restructuring and recognized a total gain of
$2,299,986 from the debt settlement.
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Convertible subordinated debt

In March 2013, 112359 Factor Fund, LLC (the “Fund”), was assigned the $6,368,078 of outstanding debt owed to
Laurus, which the Fund could satisfy in full by making certain payments to Laurus. Factor Fund did not abide by the
contractual terms of the assignment agreement; therefore, at November 30, 2014 the Company was still obligated to
Laurus as noted above.

During February 2013, the Company entered into a securities purchase agreement with the Fund pursuant to which the
Company issued to the Fund (i) an amended convertible debenture in the principal amount of $1,000,000 (“Amended
Note 1”) and (ii) a second amended convertible debenture in the principal balance of $1,000,000 (“Amended Note 2” and
together with Amended Note 1, the “Amended Notes”).  The Amended Notes were sold to the Fund by the Company in
exchange for the Fund’s assumption and payment of the Laurus assignment agreement (which required the Fund to
make payments totaling $350,000, of which $250,000 was paid, to Laurus), payment to the Company of $150,000,
and the agreement to purchase from another lender and cancel an existing convertible debenture in the amount of
approximately $35,000.

The conversion price of Amended Note 1 is based on a variable that is not an input to the fair value of a
“fixed-for-fixed” option as defined under FASB ASC Topic No. 815 - 40. The fair value of the note was recognized as a
derivative instrument at the issuance date and was measured at fair value at each reporting period. The Company
determined that the fair value of the notes was $1,874,169 at the issuance dates. The value of the debt of $1,000,000
was recorded as a debt discount and is amortized to interest expense over the term of the Notes. The variance to the
fair value of $874,169 was recognized as an initial loss and recorded to change in fair value of derivative liabilities

Amended Note 2 converts into shares of common stock of the Company in an amount equal to the lesser of the
outstanding balance of Amended Note 2 divided by $0.01. Any principal or interest amount can be paid in cash.

The Amended Notes matured on December 31, 2014, and were modified in January 2015 to mature on December 31,
2015. The Company is in discussions to change the maturity dates again and to modify the notes.  Interest accrues on
the unpaid principal at a rate per annum equal to 6% for Amended Note 1 and 2% for Amended Note 2.

During the year ended November 30, 2013, the Fund also loaned the Company amounts of $50,000, $35,000 and
$12,000 (the “Bridge Notes”). In June 2013 the Fund refinanced the Bridge Notes with additional funding into another
note for $665,000 (the “New Note”). The additional funding under the New Note provided cash to purchase two
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outstanding convertible debentures for an aggregate price of $99,360; cash for operations of $60,000 in June 2013;
and $40,000 in cash each month for the months of July 2013 through December 2013. The Company incurred $68,640
in finder fees and legal fees in connection with the New Note, and a $100,000 original issuance discount. The New
Note bears interest at 6% per annum and was due December 31, 2014. The Fund can elect at any time to convert any
portion of the New Note into shares of common stock of the Company at 60% of the volume weighted average price
of the common stock for the 20 trading days immediately prior to the conversion date. The Company received an
aggregate of $300,000 in cash under the New Note in the months of June through December 2013 under the New
Note.

The conversion price of the $665,000 of variable conversion price note is based on a variable that is not an input to the
fair value of a “fixed-for-fixed” option as defined under FASB ASC Topic No. 815 - 40. The fair value of the
conversion feature was recognized as a derivative instrument at the issuance date and is measured at fair value at each
reporting period. The Company determined that the fair value of the conversion feature was $1,103,940 at the
issuance date. Debt discount was recorded up to the $625,000 face amount of the note and is amortized to interest
expense over the term of the note. The fair value of the conversion feature in excess of the principal amount allocated
to the notes in the aggregate amount of $478,940 was expensed immediately as additional interest expense

Effective January 20, 2015, the Company signed a debt modification agreement with the Fund. The modification
reduced the outstanding balance on Amended Note 1 from $280,190 to $250,000, and provided that upon the
completion of the payments required to retire Amended Note 1, the outstanding balance of Amended Note 2 would be
reduced to from $1,000,000 to $0. The Fund subsequently assigned the remaining balance of Amended Note 1 and the
related security agreements to EXO. The Company also received $25,000 in cash in February 2015, in conjunction
with a variable rate convertible debenture payable to EXO (the “EXO Note 1”), which matured on December 31, 2015,
bears interest at an annual rate of 6%, and is subject to the same security agreements as Amended Note 1. The
Company is negotiating a new maturity date for EXO Note 1.
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The conversion price of the EXO Note 1 is based on a variable that is not an input to the fair value of a “fixed-for-fixed”
option as defined under FASB ASC Topic No. 815 - 40. The fair value of the notes was recognized as a derivative
instrument at the issuance date and is measured at fair value at each reporting period. The Company determined that
the fair value of the note was $74,990 at the issuance date. Debt discount was recorded up to the $25,000 face amount
of the note and is amortized to interest expense over the term of the note. The fair value of the conversion feature in
excess of the principal amount allocated to the notes in the aggregate amount of $49,990 was expensed immediately as
additional interest expense.

On January 21, 2015, the Company signed a second debt modification agreement with the Fund. This modification
provided for the reduction of the principal balance of the New Note from $634,600 to $250,000, subject to certain
conditions precedent. The Fund assigned a $250,000 portion of the New Note and the related security agreements to
two new debt holders in equal amounts of $125,000 each. On March 5, 2015, the Company met the conditions
precedent in the debt modification agreement, and recognized a troubled debt restructuring gain of $1,568,335. For the
year ended Novemebr 30, 2015, as a result of the debt modifications with the Fund and Laurus, the Company
recognized a total gain on troubled debt restructuring of $3,868,321, or $0.00 per basic and fully diluted share.

On April 21, 2015, EXO purchased a $63,000 convertible note, with a minimum conversion price of $0.00005 per
share, that the Company originally issued to Diamond Remark LLC (“Diamond”) on September 4, 2014. EXO can elect
at any time to convert any portion of the debt into shares of common stock of the Company at a discount of 49% of
the price of the common stock as defined in the agreement, subject to a minimum conversion price of $0.00005 per
share. On March 3, 2015, Diamond notified the Company that the Company was in default and that in accordance
with the default provisions of the lending agreement, the amount of money that the Company was required to pay
back to Diamond had increased due to default fees. The note was due on June 26, 2015, and remains in default. EXO
purchased the note for $97,675. In conjunction with the penalty clauses in the note and default fees due to EXO, on
September 8, 2015, the Company issued an amended and restated convertible promissory note to EXO in the amount
of $209,847, with the same conversion terms and conditions as the original note issued to Diamond. The note matures
on March 31, 2016 and bears interest at a rate of 8% per annum.

On May 11, 2015, the Company signed a $140,000 convertible note agreement with FLUX Carbon Starter Fund (the
“Flux Note 1”), which matured on December 31, 2015, and bears interest at an annual rate of 6%. The Flux Note 1 can
be converted into the Company’s common stock at a price of $0.002 per share. In conjunction with the Flux Note, the
Company received $68,000 in cash and recorded an original issuance discount of $72,000 as interest expense.

On July 1, 2015, in conjunction with the purchase of Plaid Canary Corporation (“PCC”) (see Note 14), the Company
assumed a secured note payable to FLUX Carbon Starter Fund in the amount of $627,000, (the “Flux Note 2”) with an
annual interest rate of 20%, that matured on January 31, 2016. The Flux Note 2 can convert into shares of common
stock of PCC at the market price of PCC’s common stock. The market price is defined as the lowest closing bid price
of PCC’s common stock during the previous 90 trading days. The Flux Note 2 contains an original issuance discount of
$313,500, $260,393 of which has been expensed in fiscal 2015, and $53,107 which remains as a portion of the total
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debt discount at November 30, 2016.

The Amended Notes, New Note, Flux Note 1, Flux Note 2 and notes payable to EXO (the “Subordinated Debt”) are
subordinated to any debt payable to TCA. In instances where the Subordinated Debt is past due, the Company is
negotiating extended maturity dates. None of the Subordinated Debt holders have issued the Company a default
notice. The Company contests the validity and enforceability of the Amended Notes because the asignees of the
Amended Notes did not pay the full amount of consideration of $350,000 to Laurus to complete the assignment of the
Amended Notes. As noted above, the Company paid $70,000 of the required $350,000 payment, in order to complete
the settlement agreement with Laurus.

During the year ending November 30, 2015, the Subordinated Debt holders converted $240,400 of principal into
1,159,047,428 shares of common stock of the Company and recorded a gain of $1,419,661 on the conversions. During
the year ending November 30, 2014, the Subordinated Debt holders converted $287,500 of principal into 253,000,000
shares of common stock of the Company and the Company recorded a gain of $1,059,464 on the conversions.  

At November 30, 2015 and 2014, the Company owed the Subordinated Debt holders $2,687,461 and $1,935,190,
respectively.

Debt due to TCA

On October 14, 2015 the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with TCA , as lender,
pursuant to which TCA agreed to loan the Company up to a maximum of $5 million for working capital and general
operating expenses. An initial amount of $500,000 was funded by TCA on October 14, 2015.  Any additional funding
to be provided to the Company under the SPA will be at the discretion of TCA.
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Our obligation to repay the $500,000 borrowed pursuant to the SPA is evidenced by TCA Debenture 1. The
repayment of TCA Debenture 1 is secured by a first position security interest in substantially all of the Company’s
assets and in substantially all of the assets of the Company's subsidiaries, as evidenced by a security agreement
between the Company and its subsidiaries and TCA, The Company also pledged the stock it owns in its subsidiaries.
 TCA Debenture 1 matures on April 14, 2017 and bears interest at the rate of 18% per annum. Interest and principal
payments are due in monthly installments beginning in November 2015 and February 2016, respectively.

Upon the occurrence of an event of default, TCA may convert all or any portion of the outstanding principal, accrued
and unpaid interest, and any other sums due and payable under TCA Debenture 1 into shares of the Company’s
common stock at a conversion price equal to 85% of the lowest daily volume weighted average price of the Company’s
common stock during the five trading days immediately prior to the applicable conversion date, in each case subject to
a provision that no conversion may result in TCA becoming the beneficial owner of more than 4.99% of the
Company’s outstanding common stock.

The Company also borrowed $100,000 from TCA on November 18, 2015, under a debenture with similar terms,
except that the $100,000 debenture will mature on November 18, 2016 (“TCA Debenture 2”).

Upon the sale of the TCA Debenture 1, the Company also signed an advisory agreement and issued to TCA, as an
advisory fee, 27,500 shares of Pervasip Series I Preferred Stock. Each share of Series I Preferred Stock has a stated
value of $10, which will be the share's priority interest in the Company's net assets in the event of liquidation. Each
share may be converted by the holder into a number of shares of common stock equal to the stated value divided by
the average of the five lowest closing bid prices during the ten trading days immediately preceding conversion. The
holder of Series I Preferred Stock will have voting rights equivalent to those of the common stock into which the
Series I shares are convertible. In the event that TCA does not realize net proceeds from the sale of these Series I
preferred shares or the common shares upon conversion of the preferred shares (the “Advisory Fee shares”) equal to the
$275,000 fee value by the maturity date of the credit facility, these Advisory fee shares will become subject to
mandatory redemption by TCA, and the Company shall be liable to TCA for the net proceeds below an aggregate
amount of $275,000. The Company also issued to TCA 51 shares of Series J Preferred Stock. The Series J Preferred
Stock will give TCA voting control of the Company if the Company defaults on the note and TCA declares the voting
control effective.

At November 30, 2015 and 2014, the Company owed TCA $600,000 and $0, respectively.

Convertible Debt due to various lenders
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Convertible debt with a fixed conversion rate

At November 30, 2015 and November 30, 2014, the Company owed a lender $138,000 in connection two notes that
are past due, are in default, bear a default interest rate of 18% per annum, and are convertible at prices of $0.015 and
$0.02 cents per share.

During the year ended November 30, 2014, the Company received $63,000 in convertible debt with a minimum
conversion price of $0.00005 per share. The lender can elect at any time to convert any portion of the debt into shares
of common stock of the Company at a discount of 49% of the price of the common stock as defined in the agreement,
subject to a minimum conversion price of $0.00005 per share. At November 30, 2014 the Company owed the lender
$63,000. The lender sold this note to EXO, as noted above.

At November 30, 2014 and 2013, a total of $138,000 and $201,000 of convertible debt with a fixed conversion rate
was outstanding, respectively

No conversions of debt with a fixed conversion rate occurred during fiscal 2015 and 2014.

Convertible debt with a variable conversion rate issued for cash

During the year ended November 30, 2014, the Company received $152,500 in cash from lenders for convertible debt.
The convertible debt bears interest at 8% is due between June and October 2015. The lender can elect at any time to
convert any portion of the debt into shares of common stock of the Company, subject to a limit of 4.99% of the
outstanding shares, at a price discount ranging from 30% to 42% of the price of the common stock as defined in the
agreements.
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The conversion price of the $152,500 of variable conversion price notes is based on a variable that is not an input to
the fair value of a “fixed-for-fixed” option as defined under FASB ASC Topic No. 815 - 40. The fair value of the notes
was recognized as a derivative instrument at the issuance date and is measured at fair value at each reporting period.
The Company determined that the fair value of the conversion feature was $163,714 at the issuance dates. The debt
was recorded a debt discount of $152,102 and was amortized to interest expense over the term of the notes. The fair
value of the conversion feature in excess of the principal amount allocated to the notes in the aggregate amount of
$11,612 was expensed immediately as additional interest expense.

. 

At November 30, 2015 and 2014, a total of $115,000 and $179,770 of variable-rate convertible debt that had been
issued for cash was outstanding, respectively. During the year ended November 30, 2015, $103,870 of debt was
converted into 1,119,508,784 shares of common stock of the Company and the Company recorded a gain of $115,953
on the conversions. During the year ended November 30, 2014, $10,230 of this debt was converted into 137,000,000
shares of common stock of the Company.

Convertible debt with a variable conversion rate assigned to lenders.

During the years ended November 30, 2015 and 2014, no other debt with a variable conversion rate was assigned to a
lender. At November 30, 2015 and 2014, the Company owes one lender $67,750 as a result of an assignment in fiscal
2012. The convertible debt bears interest at 0% and is past due. The lender can elect at any time to convert any portion
of the debt into shares of common stock of the Company at a price discount of 55% of the market price of the
Company’s common stock as defined in the agreements.

During the years ended November 30, 2015 and 2014, none of this debt was converted into shares of common stock of
the Company.

At November 30, 2015 and 2014, a total of $320,750 and $448,520 of other convertible debt was outstanding,
respectively.

Other short-term debt due to various lenders

During the years ended November 30, 2015 and 2014, the Company received $75,000 and $114,000, respectively
from lenders in exchange for notes payable that had no conversion features.
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At November 30, 2015 and November 30, 2014, the Company owed various lenders $224,448 and $170,496,
respectively, for non-convertible notes. Cash payments were made on these notes of $23,547 and $167,980 during the
years ended November 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Other short-term debt carries an interest rate of 0% to 81%
over the term of the loans. Assets of the Company secure certain of these notes. These notes are currently in default.

5.       Derivative Liabilities

The Company evaluated their convertible note agreements pursuant to ASC 815 and due to there being no minimum
or fixed conversion price resulting in an indeterminate number of shares to be issued in the future, the Company
determined an embedded derivative existed and ASC 815 applied for their convertible notes. The Company valued the
embedded derivatives using the Black-Scholes valuation model.  

Convertible debt with a variable conversion feature

In 2015, we estimated the fair value of the derivatives using the Black-Scholes valuation method with assumptions
including: (1) term of 0 to 1.38 years; (2) a computed volatility rate of 372 to 787% (3) a discount rate of 1% and (4)
zero dividends.  Upon settlement the valuation of this embedded derivative was recorded as gain/loss on derivative
liability. 

In 2014, we estimated the fair value of the derivatives using the Black-Scholes valuation method with assumptions
including: (1) term of 0.01 to .90 years; (2) a computed volatility rate of 171 to 339% (3) a discount rate of 1% and (4)
zero dividends.  Upon settlement the valuation of this embedded derivative was recorded as gain/loss on derivative
liability.
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Redeemable convertible preferred stock

In 2015, we estimated the fair value of the derivatives using the Black-Scholes valuation method with assumptions
including: (1) term reflecting the immediate exercisability; (2) a computed volatility rate of 372% (3) a discount rate
of 1% and (4) zero dividends.  No preferred stock derivatives existed in fiscal 2014.

Tainted conventional convertible debt

In 2015, we estimated the fair value of the derivative using the Black-Scholes valuation method with assumptions
including: (1) term of 0 to 1.0 years; (2) a computed volatility rate of 372 to 787% (3) a discount rate of 1% and (4)
zero dividends.  The valuation of this embedded derivative was recorded with an offsetting gain/loss on derivative
liability.

In 2014, we estimated the fair value of the derivative using the Black-Scholes valuation method with assumptions
including: (1) term of 0 to 0.75 years; (2) a computed volatility rate of 171 to 339% (3) a discount rate of 1% and (4)
zero dividends.  The valuation of this embedded derivative was recorded with an offsetting gain/loss on derivative
liability.

Tainted stock warrants

The Company also evaluated all outstanding warrants and options to determine whether these instruments may be
tainted. All warrants outstanding were considered tainted as a result of the tainted equity environment and potential
inability of the Company to settle the instruments with shares of the Company’s stock as the number of shares issuable
cannot be estimated and could exceed that amount of authorized shares available to be issued by the Company. The
Company valued the embedded derivatives within the stock warrants using the Black-Scholes valuation model.  

In 2015, we estimated the fair value of the derivative using the Black-Scholes valuation method with assumptions
including: (1) term of 0.21 to 7.58 years; (2) a computed volatility rate of 372 to 787% (3) a discount rate of 1% and
(4) zero dividends.  The valuation of this embedded derivative was recorded with an offsetting gain/loss on derivative
liability.

In 2014, we estimated the fair value of the derivative using the Black-Scholes valuation method with assumptions
including: (1) term of 0.01 to 8.58 years; (2) a computed volatility rate of 171 to 339% (3) a discount rate of 1% and
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(4) zero dividends.  The valuation of this embedded derivative was recorded with an offsetting gain/loss on derivative
liability.

Activity for embedded derivative instruments during the year ended November 30, 2015 was as follows:

Initial
valuation
of
derivative
liabilities
upon Change in

Balance at issuance
of new fair value of Conversion Balance at

November
30,

securities
during derivative Debt of debt to November

30,
2014 the period liabilities Forgiveness equity 2015

Variable convertible debt $527,781 $81,792 $2,246,080 $(1,153,545) $(1,535,614) $166,494
Redeemable convertible preferred stock —  275,000 137,500 412,500
Tainted convertible debt 106,246 118,790 (130,018 ) —  —  95,018
Tainted stock options —  —  —  —  
Tainted warrants 5,312 2,000 10,888 —  18,200

$639,339 $477,582 $2,264,450 $(1,154,545) $(1,535,614) $692,212
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Activity for embedded derivative instruments during the year ended November 30, 2014 was as follows:

Initial
valuation
of
derivative
liabilities
upon Change in Exercise

of

Balance at issuance
of new fair value of Stock Conversion Balance at

November
30,

securities
during derivative options/ of debt to November

30,
2013 the period liabilities Warrants equity 2014

Variable convertible debt $1,467,182 $230,837 $(56,277 ) $ —  $(213,961) $527,781
Tainted convertible debt 139,953 155,179 (188,886 ) —  —  106,246
Tainted stock options —  —  —  —  —  —  
Tainted warrants 198,035 —  (192,,723 ) —  —  5,312

$1,805,170 $386,016 $(1,337,886) $ —  $(213,961) $639,339

6.       Pension Plans

Defined Benefit Plan

The Company received a letter dated July 27, 2011 from the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation, (“PBGC”), stating
that the Company’s defined benefit pension plan (the “Plan”) was terminated as of September 30, 2010, and the PBGC
was appointed trustee of the Plan. Pursuant to the agreement, the PBGC has a claim to the Company for the total
amount of the unfunded benefit liabilities of the Plan of $1,614,001 plus accrued interest. The PBGC has notified the
Company that the liability is due and payable as of the termination date, and interest accrues on the unpaid balance at
the applicable rate provided under Section 6621(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. The total amount outstanding to the
PBGC at November 30, 2015 and 2014 was $2,104,410 and $2,001,984, including accrued interest, which is recorded
as a current liability. The Company made no payments to the Plan in fiscal 2015 and 2014.  The Plan covers
approximately 40 former employees.

Effective June 30, 1995, the Plan was frozen, ceasing all benefit accruals and resulting in a plan curtailment.  As a
result of the curtailment, it has been the Company’s policy to recognize the unfunded status of the Plan as of the end of
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the fiscal year with a corresponding charge or credit to earnings for the change in the unfunded liability.   There was
no pension expense recorded in fiscal years ended November 30, 2015 and 2014.

On January 1, 2015, the Company executed a settlement and release agreement with PBGC pursuant to which PBGC
agreed to accept $100,000 in full satisfaction of all amounts that had been due from the Company, which amounted to
$2,001,984 at November 30, 2014. The Company agreed to pay the sum of $100,000 to PBGC in equal installments of
$25,000 on January 31, 2015, April 30, 2015, July 31, 2015 and October 31, 2015. Upon receipt of the settlement
amount, the PBGC shall be deemed to have released the Company from any and all employer liability and fiduciary
responsibility. No installment payments have been made and the Company has not received a default notice from
PBGC.  

7.       Stockholders’ Equity

Issuance of common stock to settle debt

During fiscal 2015, $309,170 of outstanding debt and $39,100 of interest was converted into 2,328,556,212 shares of
the Company’s common stock, and the Company recognized a gain of $1,535,614 in conjunction with the settlement of
the underlying derivative liabilities. During fiscal 2014, $297,730 in outstanding debt was converted into 390,000,000
shares of the Company's common stock, and the Company recognized a gain of $213,961 in conjunction with the
settlement of the underlying derivative liabilities.
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During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2015, the Company issued 88,889,500 shares of common stock as part of a
settlement of a $10,000 judgment.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2014, the Company’s chief executive officer converted $10,565 of outstanding debt
into 5,000,000 shares of common stock.

Outstanding Series of Preferred Stock

Series D Preferred Stock

On August 30, 2013, Pervasip issued 51 shares of Series D Preferred Stock to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer
and another individual who was an officer at that time. The Series D shares have dividend rights equal to common
stock on a share-for-share basis, but no liquidation rights. Each share of the Series D Preferred has voting rights equal
to (x) 0.019607 multiplied by the total issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock eligible to vote at the time of
the respective vote (the “Numerator”), divided by (y) 0.49, minus (z) the Numerator - i.e. the ratio of the voting power
of the aggregate Series D shares to the aggregate Common Stock is 51 to 49. The Company is required to redeem all
shares of Series D Preferred, in cash, for $1.00 per share on the earlier to occur of (1) the first anniversary of the date
upon which all obligations of the Company to 112359 Factor Fund, LLC (and/or its assign(s)) have been satisfied in
full, or (2) December 31, 2019.

Series E, F and G Preferred Stock

On January 13, 2015, 10 shares of Series E Preferred, 10,000,000 shares of Series F Preferred and 10,000,000 shares
of Series G preferred were issued to our chief executive officer in exchange for $100,000 in debt. The Series E
Preferred has voting rights equal to 400% of the sum of the common stock, Series D Preferred, Series F Preferred and
Series G Preferred, but no dividend rights and no liquidation rights. The Series E Preferred is convertible into the
number of common shares equal to its voting rights.

The Series F Preferred has voting rights equal to 100 million common shares and a liquidation preference of
$10,000,000 over junior securities. Each share of Series F Preferred Stock is convertible by the holder into 250,000
shares of the Company's Common Stock. Shares of Series F Preferred Stock are anti-dilutive to reverse splits, so that
in the event of a reverse split, the shares are convertible into the same number of common shares after the reverse split
as would have been issued before the reverse split. The conversion rate of Series F Preferred Stock, however,
increases proportionately in the case of forward splits, and may not be diluted by a reverse split following a forward
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split.

The Series G Preferred has voting rights equal to 10 million common shares and a liquidation preference of
$10,000,000 over junior securities. Each share of Series G Preferred Stock is convertible into 500 shares of the
Company's Common Stock. Shares of Series G Preferred Stock are anti-dilutive to reverse splits, so that in the event
of a reverse split, the shares are convertible into the same number of common shares after the reverse split as would
have been issued before the reverse split. The conversion rate of Series G Preferred Stock, however, increases
proportionately in the case of forward splits, and may not be diluted by a reverse split following a forward split.

Series H Preferred Stock

Shares of Series H Preferred Stock are convertible by the holder into shares of Common Stock. The conversion ratio is
such that if all authorized shares of Series H Preferred Stock are converted, the holder would own shares of Common
Stock equal to 80% of the fully-diluted Common Shares. Each share of Series H Preferred Stock shall entitle the
holder thereof, on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders of the Company, to that number of votes as shall
be equal to the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock into which such holder's shares of Series H Preferred
Stock are convertible on the record date for the stockholder action.

In the event that the Company’s Board of Directors declares a dividend payable to holders of any class of stock, the
holder of each share of Series H Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive a dividend equal in amount and kind to
that payable to the holder of the number of shares of the Company’s Common Stock into which that holder’s Series H
Preferred Stock could be converted on the record date for the dividend.

Upon the liquidation, dissolution and winding up of the Company, the holders of the Series H Preferred Stock shall be
entitled to receive in cash out of the net assets of the Company, whether from capital or from earnings available for
distribution to its stockholders, before any amount shall be paid to the holders of Common Stock or to the holders of
any other class or series of equity stock, an amount equal to eighty percent (80%) of said net assets multiplied by a
fraction, the numerator of which shall be the number of outstanding shares of Series H Preferred Stock on the record
date for the distribution and the denominator of which shall be the number of authorized shares of Series H Preferred
Stock.
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Series I Preferred Stock

Each share of Series I Preferred Stock is convertible by the holder into shares of Common Stock at a conversion ratio
equal to $10 divided by the conversion price, except that no conversion may result in the holder becoming the
beneficial owner of more than 4.99% of the outstanding common shares. The conversion price is one hundred
percent (100%) of the average of the five (5) lowest closing bid prices for the Common Stock during the ten (10)
consecutive trading days immediately preceding the conversion date or other date of determination, as quoted by
Bloomberg, LP

Each share of Series I Preferred Stock shall entitle the holder thereof, on all matters submitted to a vote of the
stockholders of the Company, to that number of votes as shall be equal to the aggregate number of shares of Common
Stock into which such holder's shares of Series I Preferred Stock are convertible on the record date for the stockholder
action without taking into account potential conversions of any other convertible securities issued by the Company.

The Company’s Board of Directors shall not declare a dividend payable to holders of any class of stock other than
Series I Preferred Stock until the Company shall have declared and paid dividends to the holders of Series I Preferred
Stock equal in aggregate to the $10 Stated Value of the outstanding shares of Series I Preferred Stock.

Upon the liquidation, dissolution and winding up of the Company, the holders of the Series I Preferred Stock shall be
entitled to receive in cash out of the net assets of the Company, whether from capital or from earnings available for
distribution to its stockholders, before any amount shall be paid to the holders of common stock or to the holders of
any other class or series of equity stock, an amount equal to (a) $10 less (b) the amount of any dividends previously
paid to the holders of the Series I Preferred Stock.

A total of 175,000 and 100,000 shares of Series I preferred stock issued to TCA as advisory fees are redeemable upon
the occurrence of certain events that are outside the control of the company. These shares (and the common shares into
which these shares may be converted, together, “Advisory Fee Shares”) are also mandatorily redeemable in the event
that TCA has not realized net proceeds from the sale of the Advisory Fee Shares by the earlier of an event of default
or on October 14, 2016 and November 18, 2016, for $175,000 and $100,000, respectively, less cash proceeds received
from prior sales of Advisory Fee Shares. The total redemption amount of $275,000 is being accreted over the
respective twelve month periods using the effective interest method. A total of $710 of preferred dividends were
accreted for the Series I Preferred Stock issued to TCA during the year ended November 30, 2015.

Series J Preferred Stock
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There are no liquidation rights associated with the Series J Preferred Stock. The Series J Preferred Stock is not
convertible into any other class of stock.

Upon the Company’s receipt of notice of a default or an event of default under or pursuant to any document or
agreement executed by the Company and TCA Global Credit Master Fund, LP (“TCA”), each share of the Series J
Preferred Stock shall have voting rights equal to (x) 0.019607 multiplied by the total issued and outstanding Common
Stock and Preferred Stock eligible to vote at the time of the respective vote (the “Numerator”), divided by (y) 0.49,
minus (z) the Numerator. Accordingly, the delivery of a notice of default by TCA would give TCA voting control of
the Company.

Amendments to Increase Authorized Shares

On April 14, 2014, the Company filed an amendment to the Company’s articles of incorporation with the Secretary of
State of the State of New York (i) increasing the Company’s authorized common stock from one billion five hundred
million (1,500,000,000) shares of common stock to eight billion nine hundred seventy-eight million nine hundred
ninety-nine thousand nine hundred ninety (8,978,999,990) shares of common stock; (ii) increasing the number of
shares of undesignated preferred stock from one million shares (1,000,000) to twenty-one million and ten shares
(21,000,010); and (iii) reducing the par value of the common stock and the preferred stock from $0.001 to $0.00001.

Stock Options

The Company issued contingent stock options in October 2013 to a marketing consultant (the “Contingent Grant”) that
granted an option to purchase 10 million shares of the Company’s common stock.  Under the Contingent Grant, stock
options were granted at an exercise price of $0.005 cents per share, which was in excess of the fair market value of the
Company’s stock on the date of grant. The Contingent Grant expired on December 31, 2014.  These options were
scheduled to vest based upon the marketing consultant exceeding monthly sales targets, as defined in the Contingent
Grant. The Company determined that the performance condition was not probable of achievement, and accordingly,
no compensation cost was recognized during the years ended November 30, 2015 and 2014.
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Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted-
Average Weighted- Weighted-
Remaining Average Average

Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding Life
(Years) Price Outstanding Price

As of November 30, 2015
$.01 4,000,000 0.99 $ 0.01 4,000,000 $ 0.01

As of November 30, 2014
$.01 - $2.40 17,800,000 0.92 $ 0.01 7,800,000 $ 0.01

The following tables summarize information about options outstanding at November 30, 2015 and 2014: 

Number of
Shares

Exercise Price
Per Share

Average
Exercise
Price

Outstanding November 30, 2013 23,793,000 $ 0.01 - $2.40 $ 0.03

Granted during year ended November 30, 2014 — — $ — 

Exercised/canceled during year ended November 30, 2014 (5,993,000 ) $0.01 - $2.40 $ 0.08

Outstanding November 30, 2014 17,800,000 $ 0.005 - $0.10 $ 0.01

Granted during year ended November 30, 2015 — — $ — 

Exercised/canceled during year ended November 30, 2015 (13,800,000) $0.01 - $0.10 $ 0.01

Outstanding November 30, 2015 4,000,000 $ 0.01 $ 0.01

Options exercisable, November 30, 2015 4,000,000 $0.01 $ 0.01

The aggregate intrinsic value was $0 for both years ended November 30, 2015 and 2014. 

Warrants

The following tables summarize information about warrants outstanding at November 30, 2015 and 2014:
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Warrants Outstanding Warrants Exercisable
Weighted-
Average Weighted- Weighted-

Range of Remaining Average Average
Exercise Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise

Prices Outstanding Life
(Years) Price Outstanding Price

As of November 30, 2015
$.001 - $1.00 83,123,333 5.13 $ 0.02 83,123,333 $ 0.02

As of November 30, 2014
$.005 - $1.20 63,125,833 7.12 $ 0.02 63,125,833 $ 0.02
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Number of
Shares

Exercise Price
Per Share

Average
Exercise
Price

Outstanding December 1, 2013 63,125,833 $ 0.005 - $1.20 $ .02

Issued during year ended November 30, 2014 $

Exercised/canceled during year ended November 30, 2014 —  —  $ —  

Outstanding November 30, 2014 63,125,833 $ 0.005 - $1.20 $ .02

Issued during year ended November 30, 2015 20,000,000 $0.001 $ 0.001

Exercised/canceled during year ended November 30, 2015 (2,500 ) $1.20  $ $1.20 

Warrants outstanding November 30, 2015 83,123,333 $ 0.001 - $1.00 $ .02

Warrants exercisable, November 30, 2015 83,123,333 $ 0.001 - $1.00 $ .02

The aggregate intrinsic value was $0 for both year ended November 30, 2015 and 2014.

Equity Incentive Plans and Restricted Stock Award Plan

On October 24, 1996, the shareholders of the Company adopted the eLEC Communications Corp. 1996 Restricted
Stock Award Plan (the “Restricted Stock Award Plan”).  An aggregate of 40,000 shares of common stock of the
Company have been reserved for issuance in connections with awards granted under the Restricted Stock Award
Plan.  Such shares may be awarded from either authorized and unissued shares or treasury shares. The maximum
number of shares that may be awarded under the Restricted Stock Award Plan to any individual officer or key
employee is 10,000.  No shares were awarded during fiscal 2015 and 2014.

The Company’s 2007 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2007 Plan”) provides for the grant of up to 200,000 incentive stock
options, non-qualified stock options, tandem stock appreciation rights, and stock appreciation rights of shares of
common stock.  Under the 2007 Plan, incentive stock options may be granted at no less than the fair market value of
the Company’s stock on the date of grant, and in the case of an optionee who is an Affiliate, 110% of the market price
on the date of grant.  As of November 30, 2015 and 2014, 152,500 option shares remain unissued.

The Company’s 2009 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2009 Plan”) provides for the grant of up to 500,000 incentive stock
options, non-qualified stock options, tandem stock appreciation rights, and stock appreciation rights of shares of
common stock.  Under the 2009 Plan, incentive stock options may be granted at no less than the fair market value of
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the Company’s stock on the date of grant, and in the case of an optionee who is an Affiliate, 110% of the market price
on the date of grant.  As of November 30, 2015 and 2014, 171,000 option shares remain unissued.

The Company’s 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2010 Plan”), as amended, provides for the grant of up to 25,000,000
incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options, tandem stock appreciation rights, and stock appreciation rights of
shares of common stock.  Under the 2010 Plan, incentive stock options may be granted at no less than the fair market
value of the Company’s stock on the date of grant, and in the case of an optionee who is an Affiliate, 110% of the
market price on the date of grant.  The 2010 Plan was amended in fiscal 2012 from 500,000 option shares to
25,000,000 option shares.  As of November 30, 2015 and 2014, 24,650,253 option shares remain unissued.

The Company’s 2011 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2011 Plan”) provides for the grant of up to 20,000,000 incentive stock
options, non-qualified stock options, tandem stock appreciation rights, and stock appreciation rights of shares of
common stock.  Under the 2011 Plan, incentive stock options may be granted at no less than the fair market value of
the Company’s stock on the date of grant, and in the case of an optionee who is an affiliate, 110% of the market price
on the date of grant.  As of November 30, 2015 and 2014, 16,000,000 and 12,200,000 option shares, respectively
remain unissued.

The Company’s Non-employee Director Stock Option Plan provides for the grant of options to purchase 1,000 shares
of the Company’s common stock to each non-employee director on the first business day following each annual
meeting of the shareholders of the Company.  Under this Plan, options may be granted at no less than the fair market
value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant.
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8.       Income Taxes

The Company has accumulated net operating losses of $24 million and $32 million for United States federal tax
purposes at November 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, some of which may be limited in their utilization pursuant to
Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code, and which may not be available entirely for use in future years.  These
losses expire in fiscal years 2020 through 2033.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes.  Significant components of
the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities as of November 30, 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

2015 2014
Deferred tax assets, net:
Net operating loss carry forwards $8,280,000 $10,930,000
Accrued pension 680,000 680,000
Interest 470,000 560,000
Other 10,000
Total 9,430,000 12,180,000
Valuation allowance (9,430,000) (12,180,000)
Net deferred assets $—  $—  

The valuation allowance decreased to $9,430,000 at November 30, 2015 from $12,180,000 at November 30, 2014.

The following is a reconciliation of the tax provisions for the years ended November 30, 2015 and 2014 with the
statutory Federal income tax rates:

Percentage of
Pre-Tax Income
2015 2014

Statutory federal income tax rate 34.0 % 34.0 %
Reduction of tax attributes due to discharge of indebtedness (34.0) (34.0)

Effective tax rate —  —  

Under Section 108(a) of the Internal Revenue Code, the gain of approximately $3,868,000  in fiscal 2015, that is
attributable to debt forgiveness and settlement of liabilities is not included in taxable income of the Company as the
Company is deemed insolvent for tax purposes.  The Company’s net operating loss carry forwards have been reduced
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by the amount of non-taxable debt forgiveness.

The Company did not have any material unrecognized tax benefits as of November 30, 2015 and 2014. The Company
does not expect the unrecognized tax benefits to significantly increase or decrease within the next twelve months.  The
Company recorded no interest and penalties relating to unrecognized tax benefits as of and during the years
ended November 30, 2015 and 2014.  The Company is subject to United States federal income tax, as well as taxes by
various state jurisdictions.  The Company is currently open to audit under the statute of limitations by the federal and
state jurisdictions for the years ending November 30, 2012 through 2015.

9.       Fair Value Measurements

The Company uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and liabilities and to
determine fair value disclosures of financial instruments on a recurring basis.

Fair Value Hierarchy

The Fair Value Measurements Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification establishes a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest
priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the
lowest priority to measurements involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels
of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level
1

inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has
the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level
2

inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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Determination of Fair Value

Under the Fair Value Measurements Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification, the Company bases its
fair value on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. It is the Company’s policy to maximize the use of observable
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when developing fair value measurements, in accordance with the
fair value hierarchy. Fair value measurements for assets and liabilities where there exists limited or no observable
market data and, therefore, are based primarily upon management’s own estimates, are often calculated based on
current pricing policy, the economic and competitive environment, the characteristics of the asset or liability and other
such factors. Therefore, the results cannot be determined with precision and may not be realized in an actual sale or
immediate settlement of the asset or liability. Additionally, there may be inherent weaknesses in any calculation
technique, and changes in the underlying assumptions used, including discount rates and estimates of future cash
flows, that could significantly affect the results of current or future value.

Following is a description of valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities recorded at fair value and for
estimating fair value where it is practicable to do so for financial instruments not recorded at fair value (disclosures
required by the Fair Value Measurements Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification).

Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and accounts payable

In general, carrying amounts approximate fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments.

Debt

At November 30, 2015 and 2014, long-term debt was carried at its face value plus accrued interest due to the fact that
the debt is fully callable by the lender.    Based on the financial condition of the Company, it is impracticable for the
Company to estimate the fair value of the short and long-term debt.

Restricted Securities and Liabilities Measured and Recognized at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

The following table presents the amounts of available-for-sale securities and liabilities measured at fair value on a
recurring basis as of November 30, 2015 and 2014.
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The fair value of restricted securities are measured with quoted prices in active markets. The fair value of the
derivatives that are traded in less active over-the-counter markets are generally measured using pricing models with no
observable inputs.  These measurements are classified as Level 3 within the fair value of hierarchy.

Total (Level 1) (Level
2) (Level 3)

November 30, 2015
Restricted securities $220,000 $220,000 —  —  
Derivative liabilities $692,212 —  —  $692,212

November 30, 2014
Restricted securities $1,040,000 $1,040,000 —  —  
Derivative liabilities $639,339 —  —  $639,339

The Company has no instruments with significant off balance sheet risk.

In 2015, we estimated the fair value of the derivative using the Black-Scholes valuation method with assumptions
including: (1) term of 0.01 to 5.5 years; (2) a computed volatility rate of 372% (3) a discount rate of 1% and (4) zero
dividends.  The valuation of this embedded derivative was recorded with an offsetting gain/loss on derivative liability.

In 2014, we estimated the fair value of the derivative using the Black-Scholes valuation method with assumptions
including: (1) term of 0.01 to 6.5 years; (2) a computed volatility rate of 339% (3) a discount rate of 1% and (4) zero
dividends.  The valuation of this embedded derivative was recorded with an offsetting gain/loss on derivative liability.

Fluctuations in the conversion discount percentage have the greatest effect on the value of the conversion liabilities
valuations during each reporting period. As the conversion discount percentage increases for each of the related
conversion liabilities instruments, the change in the value of the conversion liabilities increases, therefore increasing
the liabilities on the Company's balance sheet. The higher the conversion discount percentage, the higher the liability.
A 10% change in the conversion discount percentage would result in more than a $110,000 change in our Level 3 fair
value.
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10.       Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases

For its office space, the Company leases facilities under an operating lease agreement that can be canceled on its
anniversary date with 60-day advance notice. For its hydroponics store, the lease obligation ended on February 19,
2016, when the Company’s subsidiary turned over its leased space to its landlord before the scheduled expiration date
of June 30, 2016.

Rent expense was $71,310 and $9,075 in fiscal 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Litigation

The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of its business.  In the
opinion of management, the amount of ultimate liability, if any, is not likely to have a material effect on the financial
condition, results of operations or liquidity of the Company.  However, as the outcome of litigation or legal claims is
difficult to predict, significant changes in the estimated exposures could occur.

11. Net Earnings Per Common Share

Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income available to common stockholders (numerator) by the
weighted average number of vested, unrestricted common shares outstanding during the period (denominator). Diluted
net income per share is computed on the basis of the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding
plus the effect of dilutive potential common shares outstanding during the period using the if-converted method.
Dilutive potential common shares include shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding stock options, warrants and
convertible debt agreements.

2015 2014
Net income (loss) – numerator basic $385,012 $(458,798 )
Interest expense attributable to convertible notes, net 492,619 —  
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Net income plus interest expense attributable to convertible notes,
net – numerator diluted $877,631 $(458,798 )

Weighted average common shares outstanding – denominator basic 3,079,122,127 980,488,901
Effect of dilutive securities, stock options and preferred stock 19,348,398,575 —  
Weighted average dilutive common shares outstanding 22,427,520,702 980,488,901
Net income per common share – basic $0.00 $0.00
Net income per common share – diluted $0.00 $0.00

12. Related Party Transactions

At November 30, 2015 and 2014, the total amount due to our chief executive officer, including loans, unpaid salary,
interest and expenses amounted to $1,368,000 and $1,194,021, respectively.

At November 30, 2015, we owed $222,918 to a company that is controlled by the entity that owns 60% of our voting
control, via ownership of our Series H preferred stock. The entity also received a consulting fee of 7,500 shares of
Series I Preferred Stock, which we recorded as a consulting fee of $75,000.

At November 30, 2014 the amount of unpaid salary owed to our former chief information officer amounted to
$20,000. This liability was settled on December 1, 2015 with the issuance of a three-year warrant to purchase
20,000,000 shares of our common stock at a price of $0.001 per share.

We paid fees to a software consulting firm (“Consultant”) of $126,500 in fiscal 2014. All such work performed by the
Consultant became the property of the Company, and was sold on September 30, 2014, as noted below.  Our former
chief information officer performed work for the Consultant, including disbursement services, in which funds that
were remitted by the Company to a company controlled by the officer were subsequently distributed for the
Consultant to appropriate vendors. For services rendered to the Consultant, our chief information officer was paid $
6,000 in fiscal 2014.
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On September 30, 2014, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a contract of sale to transfer certain
assets and liabilities, including a copy of internally developed mobile content delivery software to Vaxstar LLC (the
“Buyer”). The Buyer simultaneously assigned the contract of sale to Valuesetters, Inc. (the “Assignee”). The Buyer agreed
to pay the Company 40,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.001, of the Assignee, which are included in
Marketable Securities at November 30, 2015 and 2014. Although we had negotiated the details of the transaction with
the Buyer before our chief information officer resigned from our Company, our former chief information officer
signed the purchase agreement as the Buyer’s chief executive officer. We calculated a gain from the contract of sale
amounting to $779,645, and recorded this gain as an addition to paid-in capital because of the related-party nature of
the transaction. 

13. Partial Sale of a Business

Valuesetters, Inc. (the “Purchaser”) bought the fixed overhead, including equipment and back office operations, the
majority of the customers and a copy of the source code (the “Partial Sale”) of Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary,
TelcoSoftware.com Corp. (the “Subsidiary”), on September 30, 2014. The Subsidiary then became a wholesale customer
of the Purchaser so that the Company could continue marketing its cloud-based VoIP product without incurring the
fixed overhead costs assumed by the Purchaser. The Subsidiary received 40 million shares of common stock, or 8% of
the outstanding shares of the Purchaser, which are valued at $220,000 and $1,040,000 at November 30, 2015 and
2014, respectively. As a result of the Partial Sale, the Company’s revenues for the first quarter of fiscal 2015 are
significantly diminished from the prior year. A comparison of the income statements of the Subsidiary for the years
ended November 30, 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

11/30/2015 11/30/2014
Revenue $ 1,821 $491,319

Costs and expenses
Cost of services 1,275 287,028
Selling, general and administrative (6,426 ) 152,539
Total costs and expenses (5,151 ) 439,567

Income (loss) from operations 6,972 51,752

Other income/(expense)
Interest expense (1,542 ) (102,174)
Other income 390 105,333
Total other income/(expense) (1,152 ) 3,159

Net income $ 5,820 $54,911

The value of the marketable securities received by the Subsidiary at September 30, 2014 was $440,000, as compared
to $220,000 at November 30, 2015.
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14. Acquisition of Companies

The Company acquired 90% of the equity of Canalytix on March 25, 2015 in exchange for 100,000 shares of Series H
Preferred Stock, and acquired 100% of the equity of Plaid Canary Corporation (“PCC”) on July 1, 2015 in exchange for
500,000 shares of Series H Preferred Stock. Due to a change in control resulting from the issuance of 500,000 shares
of Series H Preferred Stock, the acquisition of PCC was treated as a reverse merger. PCC had no prior operations,
except for a note payable of $627,000 and a note receivable of $627,000 from a hydroponics store, Grow Big Supply,
LLC (“GBS”). The shares of Series H Preferred Stock were valued by an independent valuation company that analyzed
the market value of shares if converted into common stock. On July 6, 2015, PCC signed a forbearance agreement to
cure defalts on the $627,000 note from GBS, and in conjunction with the forbearance, acquired a 60% interest in GBS.
The fair value assigned to the noncontrolling interest was $0. The intangible asset that resulted from a purchase price
in excess of the fair value of the net assets acquired of both Canalytix and GBS was determined to be impaired, and an
impairment expense of $1,393,690 was recognized for the year ended November 30, 2015 . A presentation of the
unaudited proforma income statements of the Company, had the acquisitions occurred at the beginning of the 2015
and 2014 fiscal years is as follows:
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Year Ended Year Ended
11/30/2015 11/30/2014

Revenue $2,145,731 $5,694,146

Income (loss) from operations $(285,920 ) $(47,997 )

Net income (loss) $(603,685 ) $(72,717 )

Income (loss) per share $(0.00 ) $0.00

Summary of assets and liabilities acquired Canalytix GBS
Cash $302 $15,713
Accounts receivable $—  $21,675
Inventory $—  $218,145
Equipment and leasehold improvements, net $—  $25,516
Other assets $21,000 $100
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $—  $663,196
Related party debt $—  $228,105
Debt $421,001 $316,000

15. Segment Information

We determined our reporting units in accordance with ASC 280, “Segment Reporting” (“ASC 280”). We evaluate a
reporting unit by first identifying its operating segments under ASC 280. We then evaluate each operating segment to
determine if it includes one or more components that constitute a business. If there are components within an
operating segment that meet the definition of a business, we evaluate those components to determine if they must be
aggregated into one or more reporting units. If applicable, when determining if it is appropriate to aggregate different
operating segments, we determine if the segments are economically similar and, if so, the operating segments are
aggregated.

The Company’s operations during the year ended November 30, 2015 are classified into two reportable business
segments: Telecom and cannabis-related activities. The Company operated in one business segment in fiscal 2014.
Each of these segments is organized based upon the nature of products and services offered. Summarized financial
information for fiscal 2015 for each segment is provided below:

Corporate Telecom Cannabis Total

Total Assets $63,738 $221,815 $158,990 $444,543

Revenue $—  $1,822 $603,131 $604,953

Edgar Filing: PERVASIP CORP - Form 10-K

125



Costs of sales —  1,275 455,931 457,206
Depreciation/amortization expense —  —  6,699 6,699
Operating expenses - other 414,538 (6,426 ) 358,295 766,407

Gain on extinguishment of debt 2,328,876 —  —  2,328,876
Amortization of deferred finance costs (5,305 ) —  —  (5,305 )
Interest expense (1,050,304) (1,542 ) (362,183) (1,414,029)
Change in fair value of derivatives (2,264,449) —  —  (2,264,449)
Impairment  of assets (1,393,690) (220,000) —  (1,613,690)
Other income 2,961 —  —  2,961
Troubled debt restructuring gain 3,868,321 —  —  3,868,321
Net income (loss) 1,071,872 (214,569) (579,977) 277,326
Loss attributable to noncontrolling interest —  —  208,396 208,396
Net income (loss) – Pervasip Corp. $1,071,872 $(214,569) $(371,581) $485,722
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16. Subsequent Events

Between December 1, 2015 and November 30, 2016 the Company issued 126,000,000 shares of restricted common
stock as a finders fee in conjunction with the TCA financing on October 14, 2015.

On August 24, 2016, Flux Carbon Corporation agreed to return to the Company the 500,000 shares of Series H
preferred stock that had been issued for the purchase of Plaid Canary Corporation.

On January 26, 2016, the Company foreclosed on the noncontrolling ownership, which amounted to 40%, of GBS. As
of that date, GBS became a wholly-owned subsidiary. In February 2016, we were provided significant financial
incentives from GBS’s landlord to close the GBS store and we staged the contents of the store so it could be moved to
another location. We laid off our staff at the store, except for our Chief Science Officer and Chief Operating Officer,
and we moved our inventory to temporary storage while we searched for a location that would allow us to perform
scientific work in the cannabis industry. However, before the contents of the store was moved, a theft occurred that
was engineered by approximately 10 individuals. We submitted an insurance claim for approximately $296,000, based
on the coverages that were stated in our commercial theft insurance policy. The insurance company is offering a
settlement of $25,000 based upon the conclusion that a former employee engineered the theft.

In November 2016, we secured a verbal agreement with a licensed grower and dispensary and we moved inventory
from our storage into its warehouse. As a result of our inability to continue operating GBS in manner similar to our
fiscal 2015 operations, our sales in 2016 for GBS are limited to approximately $280,000.

On September 20, 2016, the Company received a demand for payment from TCA Global Credit Master Fund, L.P.
(the “TCA Fund”) of $1,164,460.50 pursuant to a Senior Secured Convertible Redeemable Debenture, dated June 30,
2015, and effective October 14, 2015; a Securities Purchase Agreement, dated and effective the same, and that
Promissory Note, dated and effective the same; a Senior Secured Convertible Redeemable Debenture, dated June 30,
2015, and effective October 14, 2015; and a Securities Purchase Agreement, dated June 30, 2015 and effective
November 18, 2015. TCA Fund has also filed suit in the state of Florida to collect this past due amount, plus interest
that continues to accrue at the rate of $323.66 per day until the obligation is satisfied.

The Company is negotiating to restructure the debt and on November 23, 2016 signed a non-binding term sheet with
the TCA Fund to borrow $5,000,000 under a secured debenture facility.
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